
~ INCLINE 
"4!111 VILLAGE 
GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
ONE DISTRICT - ONE TEAM 

1rne1 IF llfflll 
The Audit Committee Meeting of the Incline Village General Improvement District will be held starting at 
3 p.m. on October 26, 2021 at the Chateau, 955 Fairway Boulevard, Incline Village, Nevada. In addition 
to in person public comment, the public is welcome to make their public comment either via e-mail (please 
send your comments to info@ivgid.org by 1 :00 p.m. on October 26, 2021) or via telephone (the telephone 
number will be posted to our website on the day of the meeting). The meeting will be available for viewing 
at https://livestream.com/accounts/3411104. 

In accordance with the Governor's Emergency Directive, all those in attendance will be required 
to wear a mask. Thank you, in advance, for your compliance 

A. ROLL CALL OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS* 
Cliff Dobler (At-Large Member), Sara Schmitz (Trustee), Matthew Dent (Trustee) and Raymond 
Tulloch (At-Large Member) (Chair) 

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS* - Conducted in accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 
241.020 and limited to a maximum of three (3) minutes in duration. 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (for possible action) 

The Audit Committee may make a motion for a flexible agenda which is defined as taking items 
on the agenda out of order; combining agenda items with other agenda items; removing items 
from the agenda; moving agenda items to an agenda of another meeting, or voting on items in a 
block. 

The Audit Committee may make a motion to accept and follow the agenda as submitted/posted. 

D. GENERAL BUSINESS ITEMS (for possible action) 

1. Verbal update to Audit Committee on revisions to Policy 15.1.0 provided to the Board for 
their October 26, 2021 meeting (Requesting Audit Committee Member: Audit Committee 
Chairman Raymond Tulloch) -pages 3- 18 

2. Update, by Director of Finance Paul Navazio, on external audit progress and review of 
initial draft of financial statements (Requesting Audit Committee Member: Audit 
Committee Chairman Raymond Tulloch) -pages 19- 61 

3. Update, by Director of Finance Paul Navazio, on progress of implementation of Moss 
Adams recommendations and Audit Committee recommendations on improvements to 
future Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports as per Board of Trustees motion on 
General Business Item K.2. from the February 10, 2021 meeting (Requesting Audit 
Committee Member: Audit Committee Chairman Raymond Tulloch) - pages 62 - 67 

Incline Village General Improvement District 
Incline Village General Improvement District is a fiscally responsible community partner which provides superior utility services and community 

oriented recreation programs and facilities with passion for the quality of life and our environment while investing in the Tahoe basin. 

893 Southwood Boulevard, Incl ine Village, Nevada 89451 • (775) 832·1100 • FAX (775) 832-1122 

www.yourtahoeplace.com 
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Agenda for the Audit Committee Meeting of October 26, 2021 - Page 2 

4. Review of completed Internal Controls updates and prioritized schedule of Internal Control 
updates to be completed in Fiscal Year 2021/2022 (Requesting Audit Committee Member: 
Trustee Sara Schmitz) -pages 68 - 72 

5. Update on allocation of Investment Income earned on Cash, Cash Equivalents and 
Investments for the IVGID Governmental Funds ONLY for the Fiscal Years ending June 
30, 2019 and 2020 (Requesting Audit Committee Member Cliff Dobler) - pages 73 - 77 

E. LONG RANGE CALENDAR REVIEW (for possible action) 

Review, discuss and possibly agendize for future Audit Committee meetings outstanding items 
on the Audit Committee agenda (Requesting Audit Committee Member: Audit Committee 
Chairman Raymond Tulloch) - page 78 

F. COMMUNICATIONS RECEIVED (for possible action) 

G. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES (for possible action) 

1. Audit Committee Meeting Minutes of August 18, 2021 - pages 79 - 82 

H. PUBLIC COMMENTS* - Conducted in accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 
241.020 and limited to a maximum of three (3) minutes in duration. 

I. ADJOURNMENT (for possible action) 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING OF THIS AGENDA 

I hereby certify that on or before Thursday, October 21 , 2021 at 9:00 a.m. , a copy of this agenda (IVGID Audit Committee 
Meeting of October 26, 2021) was delivered to the post office addressed to the people who have requested to receive copies of 
IVG I D's agendas; copies were e-mailed to those people who have requested; and a copy was posted, physically or electronically, 
at the following locations in accordance with Assembly Bill 253: 

1. IVGID Anne Vorderbruggen Building (893 Southwood Boulevard, Incline Village, Nevada; Administrative 
Offices) 

2. IVG I D's website (www.yourtahoeplace.com/Board of Trustees/Meetings and Agendas) 
3. State of Nevada public noticing website (https://notice.nv.gov/) 

ls/ Susan A. Herron, CMC 
Susan A. Herron, CMC 
District Clerk (e-mail: sah@ivgid.org/phone # 775-832-1207) 

Audit Committee Members: VACANCY (At-Large Member), Matthew Dent (Trustee), Cliff Dobler (At-Large Member), Sara 
Schmitz (Trustee), and Raymond Tulloch (At-Large Member) (Chair) 

Notes: Items on the agenda may be taken out of order; combined with other items; removed from the agenda; moved to the 
agenda of another meeting; moved to or from the Consent Calendar section; or may be voted on in a block. Items with a specific 
time designation will not be heard prior to the stated time, but may be heard later. Those items followed by an asterisk (*) are 
items on the agenda upon which the Board of Trustees will take no action. Members of the public who are disabled and require 
special accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested to call IVGID at 832-1100 at least 24 hours prior to the 
meeting. IVG/D'S agenda packets are available at IVG/D's website, www.yourtahoeplace.com; go to "Board Meetings 
and Agendas". 



TO: 

FROM: 

Audit Committee 

Ray Tulloch 

MEMORANDUM 

Audit Committee Chair 

SUBJECT: Update on proposed revisions to Policy 15.1.0 
FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

DATE: October 26, 2021 

I. BACKGROUND 

Board Policy 15.1.0 Accounting, Auditing and Financial Reporting - Audit 
Committee should be reviewed and revised periodically to remain relevant and to 
ensure compliance. If policies are not periodically reviewed they can become 
obsolete over time. 

The Audit Committee has previously provided to the Board proposed revisions to 
Policy 15.1.0. This has subsequently been discussed by the Board at previous 
meetings, most recently on 30 September 2021, where the Chair requested some 
further review and clarification of changes. The Audit Committee Chair 
subsequently discussed possible changes with Trustee Tanking. The most recent 
version is attached as Appendix 1 which will be reviewed and discussed by the 
Board at the October 26 Board meeting. 

II ACTIONS 

No action required; this is provided For Information Only. 

Attachment: 
Appendix 1: Materials from the 10-26-2021 Board of Trustees meeting - Policy 
15.1.0 
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MEMORANDUM 

TO: 

THROUGH: 

Board of Trustees 

Tim Callicrate 
Board Chairman 

FROM: Michaela Tonking 
Board Treasurer 

SUBJECT: Review, discuss and provide direction on possible revisions to­
Board Policy 15.1.0 - Audit Committee 

DATE: October 26, 2021 

I. RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees: 

II. 

1) Review, discuss and provide direction on possible revisions to Board 
Policy 15.1 .0 based off decision points, and 

2) Direct Staff to return to the Board with a final draft of revised Policy 
15.1.0 incorporating Board feedback and direction for approval. 

BACKGROUND 

Board Policy 15.1.0, establishing roles and responsibilities of the Audit Committee, 
was first adopted in 2009 and revised in 2017. The policy was again revised in May 
of 2020 to more specifically define the role and responsibilities of the Audit 
Committee as well as to reconfigure the Committee to be comprised of two Board­
appointed Trustees and three Board-appointed At-Large members. 

Under the current Board Policy 15.1.0, the Audit Committee serves to assist the 
Board of Trustees in fulfilling its fiduciary responsibilities by providing independent 
review and oversight over financial reporting, internal controls, and the 
independent audit of financial statements. 

In addition to the scope of the Audit Committee's authority and responsibilities, 
Policy 15.1.0 provides that the Audit Committee is responsible for managing the 
procurement process for selection of the District's independent auditor, outlines 
the role of the Audit Committee through the annual independent audit, and charges 
the Audit Committee with oversight in ensuring a transparent process for 
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Review, discuss and provide direction on possible -2-
Revisions to Board Policy 15 .1 .0 - Audit Committee 

October 26, 2021 

communicating and resolving complaints received by the District related to 
accounting practices, internal controls, auditing matters and suspected fraud. 

Policy 15.1.0 also provides that the Audit Committee Charter shall be reviewed 
periodically with recommended changes submitted to the Board of Trustees for 
their consideration. 

This agenda item has been prepared at the request of the Board of Trustees to 
serve as a linear way to discuss major decision points and possible language 
change. 

Note - This item originally appeared on the Board agenda for its meeting of July 
13, 2021. However, the discussion of Board Policy 15.1 was deferred in order to 
allow the Audit Committee to provide its comments and suggested revisions to the 
existing policy. A discussion of Board Policy 15. 1 was agendized as part of a 
special meeting of the Audit Committee held on June 29th, as well as appearing on 
the agenda for Audit Committee meetings held on July 13th, August 10th and 
August 1 ?fh_ The Audit Committee recommendations related to Board Policy 15. 1 
were used as a base template for the updated version included in this agenda 
packet. 

Ill. DISCUSSION 

This agenda item seeks to provide the Board of Trustees with the opportunity to 
review Board Policy 15.1.0, following the first full year of the policy that was 
amended in May 2020, outlining the roles and responsibilities of the Audit 
Committee, modifying the structure of the Audit Committee, and providing for an 
Annual Report from the Audit Committee to the Board of Trustees in conjunction 
with the presentation of the annual audited financial statements. 

Following adoption of the amended Board Policy 15.1 .0 on May 6, 2020, a 
transition plan was developed that led to the appointment of new Committee 
members on June 23, 2020, followed by the convening of the first meeting of the 
newly re-constituted Audit Committee on July 29, 2020. 

During the course of the past year, the Audit Committee was comprised of two 
Board-appointed Trustees (Dent and Schmitz) and three Board-appointed At­
Large (public) members (Aaron, Dobler, Tulloch). 

Through June of 2021 the Audit Committee held a total of 14 meetings, provided 
oversight to the independent external audit of the District's financial statements for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, provided a report to the Board of Trustees 
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Review, discuss and provide direction on possible -3-
Revisions to Board Policy 15.1.0 -Audit Committee 

October 26, 2021 

specific to the independent audit, served as a forum for review of issues and 
concerns related to accounting practices, as well as past financial statements and 
audits, managed the procurement process for the District's new independent 
external auditor, and, most recently, has been developing a policy and procedure 
related to addressing Whistleblower complaints. 

While each Board Trustee was appointed to serve a one-year term, the At-Large 
members were first appointed to provide for one member to serve a one-year term 
(Aaron) and two members to serve two-year terms (Dobler, Tulloch). 
Subsequently, committee member Aaron was re-appointed by the Board to serve 
a two year term, thus providing for staggered two-year terms for all At-Large 
members. At the same time, Trustee Dent chose not to seek re-appointment 
following completion of his one-year term, and while the Board of Trustees has re­
appointed Trustee Schmitz to a new one-year term, the second Board-appointed 
seat on the Audit Committee remains vacant. (Note: Committee member Derrek 
Aaron has since submitted his resignation, effective July 19, 2021). 

Consideration of Possible Revisions to Policy 15. 1. 0 

The Board of Trustees' consideration of possible revisions to Board Policy 15.1.0 
should appropriately focus on the extent to which the current policy and 
implementation thereof meets the intent of the Board in establishing the Audit 
Committee and, if not, how best can the policy be revised to improve alignment 
between Board intent and Committee expectations. 

Decision points for the board to consider: 

• The use of best practice and keeping language consistent with GFOA and 
AICPA 

• Membership and makeup of the audit committee 
o Number of members on the audit committee 
o Set or flexible number of members of the audit committee 
o Makeup of members on the audit committee 
o Term length of each member 

• Selection process for at-large members 

• Preferred qualification of at-large members 

• The role of the treasurer and inclusion in the audit committee 
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Revisions to Board Policy 15.1.0 - Audit Committee 

• Selection of audit committee chair 

• Approval of management representation letter 

October 26, 2021 

This report includes, via attachment, a list of decision points highlighting specific 
provisions of Board Policy 15.1.0 identified from various Board comments and 
discussions with Audit Committee Chair. 

Audit Committee and Board of Trustees Recommended Revisions to Board 
Policv 15.1.0 

As noted, the Audit Committee has recently held several meetings where 
recommended revisions to Board Policy 15.1 were included as agendized 
discussions. The most recent set of recommendations were discussed at the Audit 
Committee meeting of August 17. The recommended revisions approved by the 
Audit Committee at their August 17 meeting have been transmitted to the Board 
via separate agenda item. 

The audit committee recommendations were used as a base for the 
recommendations put forward in Attachment A. Additionally comments from 
Trustees Schmitz and Wong were also included and cited in the comments or 
decision points in Attachments A and B. 

IV. COMMENTS 

Since this agenda item first appeared on the Board agenda for the meeting of July 
13th the Audit Committee has also forwarded to the Board of Trustees a draft 
Whistleblower Policy for Board consideration. The Whistleblower Policy, which 
was agendized for discussion for the Board meeting of August 10, was removed 
from the agenda by a majority vote of the Board of Trustees, and has been deferred 
pending Board review and discussion of Board Policy 15.1. 

Attachments: 

• Policy 15.1.0 Decision points 
• Board Policy 15.1 .0 with recommendation from Audit Committee and 

attached comments 
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Policy 15.1.0 Decision Points 

1. Is the board planning on using best practices? If so, the board needs to 
make sure that they keep language consistent with GFOA and/or AICPA. 
Here are decisions areas where the language would need to change. This 
decision point will also guide other decision points. 

1.1 Page 1 Paragraph 2: 

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) encourages the 
effective use of an audit committee in the public sector and considers 
such a committee an integral element of public accountability and 
governance. An Audit Committee plays a key role with respect to 
overseeing the integrity of the District's annual financial statements (the 
"CAFR") by ensuring those responsible for financial management 
(Management, and the Board of Trustees) meet their responsibilities for 
maintaining an effective system of internal controls over financial 
reporting. 
Recommended Change: 
The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) encourages the 
effective use of an audit committee in the public sector and considers 
such a committee an integral element of public accountability and 
governance. An Audit Committee plays a key role with respect to 
overseeing the integrity of the District's annual financial statements (the 
"CAFR") by ensuring those responsible for financial management 
(Management, and the Board of Trustees) meet their responsibilities for 
maintaining an effective system of internal controls over financial 
reporting. An audit committee is a practical means for a governing body 
to provide much needed independent review and oversight of the 
District's financial reporting processes, internal controls, and 
independent auditors. 

1.2 In accordance with GFOA recommendations, trustees considered for 
appointment to the Committee shall not be exercising managerial 
responsibilities that fall within the scope of the audit of the District. This 
recommendation would generally preclude the Treasurer from joining the 
committee. 

Full GFOA recommendation states: All members of the audit 
committee should be members of the governing body. To ensure the 
committee1s independence and effectiveness, no governing body 
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Policy 15.1.0 Decision Points 

member who exercises managerial responsibilities that fall within the 
scope of the audit should serve as a member of the audit committee; 
Recommended Change: 
trustees considered for appointment to the Committee shall not be 
exercising managerial responsibilities that fall within the scope of the 
audit of the District. 

2. Organization Paragraph Page 2: Membership and makeup of the audit 
committee. 

2.1 What should the makeup of the members be? 

- this will impact decision points 4 and 5 

2.2 How many members should be part of the committee? 

2.3 Should the number of members be flexible? 

3. Paragraph 6 Page 2: Should trustees hold a multiyear term or just an annual 
term? 

4. Paragraph 2 Page 3 How should at large members be selected? 

5. Paragraph 2 Page 3: What preferred qualification would the board like at-large 
committee members to have to ensure that the committee has highly qualified 
members? 

6. Paragraph 1 Page 3: Is the board treasurer who does not exercise managerial 
responsibility precluded from the Audit Committee? 

7. Paragraph 4 Page 3: Should the board recommend the Chair of the Committee 
for Audit Committee consideration? 

8. Paragraph 2.3.6 on Page 6: Discuss review and approval of management 
representation letter. It should be noted the auditor drafts this letter in order to be 
in compliance with their SASS requirements. 
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,A..INCLINE 
'4iiiily 1LLAGE 
GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
ON E DISTRICT - O N E T EAM 

Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting 
Audit Committee Charter 

Policy 15.1.0 

The Incline Village General Improvement District is committed to be proactive, 
informed, and to provide the highest level of financial accountability and 
transparency to its parcel owners and other stakeholders (i .e., the State of 
Nevada) . 

tfhe Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) encourages the effective 
use of an audit committee in the public sector and considers such a committee an 
integral element of public accountability and governance. An Audit Committee 
plays a key role with respect to overseeing the integrity of the District's annual 
financial statements (the "CAFR") by ensuring those responsible for financial 
management (Management, and the Board of Trustees) meet their responsibilities 
for maintaining an effective system of internal controls over financial reporting.J _____ - commented [MTlJ: Refer 10 decision point 1 

An audit committee also provides a forum separate from management in which 
auditors and other interested parties can candidly discuss concerns. By effectively 
carrying out its functions and responsibilities, an audit committee helps to ensure 
that procedures are in place to objectively assess management's practices, and 
that the independent auditors, through their own review, objectively assess the 
government's financial reporting practices. 

An audit committee should be formally established by the Board of Trustees, be 
adequately funded, and be subject to a formally approved Audit Committee 
Charter. 

POLICY: The Audit Committee (the "Committee") is to assist the Board of Trustees 
fulfill its responsibilities in accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS), 
District Policies, Practices, Ordinances, and Resolutions by providing oversight 
over the District's financial reports, the system of internal controls including the 
internal audit plans and reports, and the independent auditor's reports within the 
CAFR. 

The Committee shall have open communication with and maintain strong working 
relationships with the IVGID Board of Trustees, the General Manager, Director of 
Finance, and the independent auditor. 

This Committee shall review the Charter annually with any recommended changes 
submitted to the Board of Trustees for consideration and possibl~_app~o_v_aL, ____ -- _ - Commented [MT2] : /\dtletl the word possible 

Adopted May 6, 2020 
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.A..., (NCLINE 
'-VILLAGE 
GENERA L IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
ONE DIST RICT - ONE TEAM 

Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting 
Audit Committee Charter 

Policy 15.1.0 

ORGANIZATION: The Committee shall consist pf five (5) voting members. This 
includes two Board members appointed annually by Trustees and three members 
appointed by the Trustees to serve as qualified At-Large Members. l _tf_h§l ___ - Commented [MT3]: Look al decision poims 2. 1. 2.2. 2.3 . 3 and 

4 Committee can be expanded to an odd numbe~. ¥\ny _ recommendations for_ 
expanding the number of voting members will be !recommended ~y the Committee_ - - Commented [MT4]: This rn uld need 10 he removed depending 

I... j IT - - on dcc b; ion poinl 2.3 
and submitted to the Board of Trustees for ..,ossible approval. L' he Committee may , , >-----------------< 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - , Commented [MTS]: Added "recommended" and removed 
retain financial or other appropriate advisors to attend meetings, provide guidance '~, "approval" 

and training, as needed, ~nd as approved by the Board of Trustees for financial \' Commented [MT6]: Added "possihle approval" and removed 

expenditures!._ - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - ~ \ ;-"c-on_si-de_ra_1io_n·_· ~_or_co_n_sis_·,e-nc_y_pu_rp_osc,_ .. _, . -------:; 

' ' 
Commented [MT7]: This could need 10 he removed depending 

Members of the Committee should have or shall obtain an understanding of ', :-"'-' cJc_c_is_io_n P_0_in_, 2_·3 ___________ ---< 
accounting, auditing, financial reporting, and internal controls to be able, with the Commented [MTS]: Added lhis IO make sure proper approval 

assistance of an advisor if needed, to deliberate on issues for which the Committee was included 

is responsible. Therefore, the Board of Trustees may need to budget for periodic 
training of the Committee members and an outside advisor to assist the Committee 
with the independent conduct of its work fwith the approval of the Board of Trustees!. ___ -
Any advisor so engaged should possess the following qualifications: 

• A thorough understanding and experience with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP), Government Accounting Standard Board 
(GASB) statements, an~ financial reporting I_ _______________________ -

• Experience either preparing or auditing financial statements 
• !Experience with internal controls I __ ___ ______________________ ____ -
• An understanding of the function of an audit committee 

At-large Committee members shall be independent. They shall not accept any 
consulting, advisory, or other compensatory fee from the District. All members shall 
not be an affiliated person with the District and at-large members suggested 
qualifications: 

At-Large Committee members shall be expected to comply with all District policies 
that apply to volunteers. District staff shall be responsible for providing copies of 
all relevant policies to Committee members. 

Commented [MT9]: Added "wh h 1hc approva l of lhe Board of 
Trus1ccs" 10 make more clear any money spcm and ,rnyonc hired 
needs to he ,1pproved hy lhe board 

Commented [MTlO]: Removed "for 1he puhlic scc10r" given 1he 
nature of JVG I.D 's opcral inn 

Commented [MT11]: Rcmo,'Cd the words "over linancial 
reporting" lO align with l;mguagc m GFOA 

• Ann~ally, the Board of Trustees will appoint two Trustees to be Committee 
members. Appointing Trustees to serve successive years increases 
continuity and allows for knowledge retention. l!ln the event a Trustee is -- _ - 1 Commented [MT12]: decision poim 3 

removed or resigns, the Board of Trustees shall appoint a new member to 
the Committee. ~n accordance with_ GFOA recommendations,_ Trustees -- _ - Commented [MT13]: This is dcpcndcnl on decision poinl D 

Adopted May 6, 2020 2 
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...... INCLINE 
~ VILLAGE 
GENERAL IM PROVEMENT DISTRICT 
ONE DISTRICT - ONE TEAM 

Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting 
Audit Committee Charter 

Policy 15.1.0 

considered for appointment to the Committee shall not be exercising 
managerial responsibilities that fall within the scope of the audit of the 
District. 1 /fhis recommendation would generally preclude the Treasurer 
from joining the Committee. (NRS318.085 item 4)l _ - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -c:: - Commented [MT14]: Sec decision roint 1.2 

• At-Large Members shall be appointed by the Board of Trustees from 
applicants with appropriate/ accounting, auditing and financial reporting 
expertise/ J.t,Ls_ e_xp~!:li_!>E:l _Cp!Jl.9 _iQ~lt,1~~: ____________________________ -

o Hold an active CPA license (preferably in Nevada} or have at least 
15 years of progressive financial management experience as 
evidenced on a resume, CV, or Linkedln 

o Experience on governing board, either as committee or board 
member 

o Experience either preparing or auditing financial statements 
o Experience with internal controls 
o An understanding of the function of an audit committee( ___________ -

• At-Large Members will serve staggered two year terms ; 
o For the first appointment, one member will serve a one-year term and 

the other two will serve a two-year term. 
o For each subsequent appointment the member will serve a two-year 

term. 

Commented [MT15): Sec decision point 6 

Commented [MT16): This needs to be updated depende nt on 
decision point 5 

Commented (MT17): Refer 10 dc1:ision po int~ - these were 
su~gcstion!l for qualilicalions from Trustee Wonfs t:o mmc nts. A l~o 
pulled down from above 

pne member of the Committee shall be appointed by the Committee to be the 
Chair. IT_h_e_ 9~?i! .Y'{_il! §,<;:~~d~!e_ ?U _G_O_ll!f!:li!tE:lE:l _ll]E:l~ti.flg§, _a_n-9 _1~r9yi9E:l _Qq_n:if!1Ltte~ ___ - Commented [MT18]: Sec decision ru in , 7 

members with a written agenda for each meeting. Committee Members may 
request agenda items for the Chair's consideration and approval. 

The Committee members are limited to two 2-year terms, f,vhich may be extended 
with the Board of Trustees approval jri_ th~_eyE:lrJt t~E:l~e-~rE:l !19 lf"!tE:lr_e§>te.9 _OJ Sl~?llfLe9 -- - - Commented (MT19): Added for extra clarilication 

applicants to fill any future vacancies. 

1.0 Independent auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee 

1 "ro ensure the committee's independence and effectiveness, no governing body member who exercises 
managerial responsibilities that fall within the scope of the audit should serve as a member of the audit 
committee" Source: GFOA Best Practices, Audit Committee 

Adopted May 6, 2020 3 
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...... INCLINE 
'-VILLAGE 
GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
ONE DISTRIC T - ONE TEAM 

Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting 
Audit Committee Charter 

Policy 15.1.0 

The independent auditor will be engaged by and report directly to the Committee. 
The Committee is expected to maintain free and open communication with the 
independent auditor and District Staff. This communication may include periodic 
executive sessions with each of these parties. The independent auditor is to bring 
to the attention of the Committee any additional work required (and related fee 
impact), beyond the scope of work contained in the engagement letter and the 
audit plan, to fulfill their responsibilities before any such work is undertaken. 

2.0 Scope of the Committee's Authority and Responsibilities 

It is the responsibility of the Committee to provide independent review, oversight 
and feedback on: 

1. Financial reporting 
2. Internal controls 
3. The independent audit of the basic financial statements 
4. The CAFR 

To fulfill these responsibilities, the Committee shall: 

2 .1 Be independent, effectively communicate, and reinforce 
accountability. 

2.2 Manage the external independent audit procurement process. 

2.2.1 Review and approve the Request for Proposal (RFP) for an 
independent auditor to be retained by the District. Such 
engagement should be for no more than five fiscal years in 
duration. 

2.2.2 !Make recommendations on the scope of work-l _ - - - - - - - - - -- - - Commented [MT20]: Removed '" including the idenlificat ion of 

2.2.3 Make recommendations to the Board of Trustees and take .__i_·un_ds_· io_ hc_· _au_di_ied_"' __________ __, 

subsequent action to engage an independent auditor. 
2.2.4 Review and approve the engagement letter (i.e. , contract) 

between the District and the independent auditor 
2.2.5 [If deemed necessary, identify and recommend additional audit 

services to be performed.[ ____________________ _____ -- - Commented [MT21): Added lhc word 11udi1 

2.2.6 By March 31st of each calendar year, the Board of Trustees is 
to formally designate an external independent auditor and 

Adopted May 6, 2020 4 
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...... INCLINE 
'4iiiil y1LLAGE 
GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
O N E DISTRICT - ONE TEAM 

Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting 
Audit Committee Charter 

Policy15.1.0 

inform the Nevada Department of Taxation. (NRS 354.624 
item 3) 

2.2. 7 r,Nhen appropriate recommend the replacement of the 
independent auditor and the initiation of the procurement 
process to the board (2.2.1 ).I_ _________________________ -

2.3 Facilitate the external audit process. 

2.3.1 Review and approve, in consultation with the independent 
auditor, the annual audit plan, the scope of audit activities and 
schedules by June of each year 

2.3.2 Provide an independent forum for auditors to report findings or 
difficulties encountered during the audit 

2 .3.3 !Review with the District management and the independent 
auditor all major issues identified by the independent auditor 
regarding: 
2 .3.3.1 Accounting Principles 
2.3.3.2 CAFR presentation 
2.3.3.3 Any significant changes in the selection or 

application of accounting principles 
2.3.3.4 Significant judgments made in the preparation of 

the CAFR and basic financial statements 
2.3.3.5 
2 .3.3.6 
2.3.3.7 

The effect of regulatory initiatives 
Off-balance sheet structures 
Changes to audit plan of independent auditor as a 
result of any additional issues identified by the 
auditor 

2.3.3.8 Any restrictions on the scope of the auditor's 
activities or on access to requested information or 

Commented [MT22]: Reworded to give the power hack to the 
hoard 

managements responses[ ___________ ______ -c _ - Commented [MT23]: Adjusted to be align in role or auditor 

2.3.4 To review with District management and the independent - commented [MT24R23J: '-----=----=-------------' auditor any material conflicts or disagreements between 
District management and the independent auditor, whether or 
not resolved, regarding financial reporting, accounting 
practices or policies or other matters, that, individually or in the 
aggregate, could be significant to the District's financial 
statements or the independent auditors' report, and attempt to 
help resolve any conflicts or disagreements regarding financial 
reporting. 

Adopted May 6, 2020 5 
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~ INCLINE 
'-VILLAGE 
GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
ONE DISTRICT - ONE T EAM 

Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting 
Audit Committee Charter 

Policy 15.1.0 

2.3.5 According to the approved work plan, conduct 
periodic meetings with the external auditor to review 
progress, issues identified, concerns and the audit 
timeline 

2.3.6 !Review and approve the Management Representation letter by 
the District's management prior to submittal of the letter to the 
independent auditorj_ ________ ___________ _________ -- _ - Commented [MT25]: Refer to discussion po int B 

2.3.7 The Committee shall submit a written report to the District's 
Board of Trustees in conjunction with the presentation of the 
CAFR to the Board of Trustees by the end of December. 

2.4 Post External Audit Follow up 
2.4.1 Follow-up on any corrective action identified ~y the external 

auditor, if an~ ___ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ - Commented [MT26]: Added to make more d ear 

2.4.2 Annually evaluate the work of the independent auditor and lead 
audit partner based on compliance with work plan and 
engagement letter 

2.4.3 ~t least annually, obtain and review a report by the 
independent auditor that describes: 
2.4.3.1 the independent auditor's internal control 

procedures 
2.4.3.2 any material issues raised by the most recent peer 

review of the independent auditor 
2.4.3.3 any inquiry or investigation by governmental or 

professional authorities, within the preceding five 
years regarding any audit performed and any steps 
taken to deal with any such issues.I_ __________ -- _ - Commented [MT27]: Remove to pu tas pan of the engagement 

lcucr and part of rrp proccs3. 

2.5 The Committee may identify a need to engage an external resource 
to address a specific area of concern. 

2.5.1 The Committee shall seek approval from Board of Trustees to 
obtain appropriate resources. 

2.5.2 The Committee shall agree the Scope of Work 
2.5.3 The Committee is responsible for engaging the resource to 

perform the scope of work. 
2.5.4 The external resource shall report findings to the Committee. 
2.5.5 The Committee will provide findings to the Board of Trustees 

and recommend possible implementation of the findings, if 
any. 

Adopted May 6, 2020 6 
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2.5.6 Management will have the responsibility for implementation of 
identified changes or enhancements. 

2.6 The Committee shall review and provide oversight of the internal 
controls ensuring management establishes, implements and reviews 
internal controls on a regular basis for functionality and 
effectiveness. 
2.6.1 Management will provide an annual schedule for the review 

of District Financial Practices (internal control) 
documents . These documents will be provided to the Audit 
Committee for their review and oversight. 

2 .7 Annually review the District's Code of Conduct that promotes honest 
and ethical conduct; full , fair, accurate, timely disclosures in periodic 
reports including the CAFR; and compliance with applicable policies 
and practices to ensure it is adequate and up-to-date. 

2.8 To annually review and refine as necessary the whistleblower 
procedures for the receipt, retention, and treatment of complaints 
received by the District, from the public or anonymous submissions by 
employees of the District, regarding accounting, internal accounting 
controls , auditing matters, or suspected fraud fpr recommendation to 
the board of trustee~ _____________________________________ -

2.8.1 Review and refine as needed the procedures for educating 
employees on their individual role in ensuring the District's 
financial integrity. 

2 .8.2 Ensure employees of the District have an anonymous method 
for concerns to be submitted. 

NOTE: This is predicated upon approval of the current whistleblower policy and may 
re uire lo be up_dated dq!_e11de11I upon BoT changes to the whislleblower olicy 

2.9 Reports to Board of Trustees. 

2.9.1 The Committee shall submit an annual report to the Board of 
Trustees assessing its fulfillment of it duties and 
responsibilities as described in the Charter 

Adopted May 6, 2020 7 

Commented [MT28): Policy sti ll needs to he approved hy hoard 
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3.0 Meetings 

3.1 Meetings are to be conducted in accordance with the state's Open 
Meeting Law NRS 241 . The Board of Trustees wi ll be emailed a copy 
of the meeting minutes. Meeting minutes will be posted on the District 
website. 

3.2 The committee will hold meetings up to twice! per quarter unless 
immediate action is needed. All ~~n:i~~r~ ..?!~ ~~P._e_c!~d_ tp -~tt_e_r,g _o_r, ___ -
a regular basis. Any member missing two consecutive meetings 
without due cause (i.e. , illness) will be reviewed for continued 
membership on the Committee by the Chairs of the Committee and 
Board. 

3.3 The committee Chair shall establish the agenda for meetings and 
provide all briefing materials to members and the public in advance. 

Commented [MT29]: Reworded 10 only meet up 10 lwicc per 
quarter unless immcdiaic action i:,, needed 

3.4 The District's management is to provide to copies of all materials 
which are to be presented by management to a Committee's public 
meeting in compliance with ~ RS xx~ _________ __ ___ __ ____ _ -- _ - 1 Commented [MT30]: Get NRS code 

3.5 The Committee shall review correspondence to determine if any 
action is to be taken . If needed, assign the responsibility to 
investigate and resolve the concern/question to the appropriate 
organizational leader. Communicate with the submitter, if known, 
regarding their submitted concern. 

3.6 The Committee shall review all past correspondence which contains 
outstanding action items. Ensure responses and/or corrective action 
is taken in a timely manner. 

3. 7 The Committee may ask members of management or others to 
attend meetings and provide pertinent information as necessary. 

3.8 An annual meeting is to be held with the independent auditor, the 
General Manager, the Director of Finance, legal counsel and anyone 
else as desired by the Committee to review the audited annual basic 
financial statements including the Comprehensive Annual Financial 

Adopted May 6, 2020 8 
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Report (CAFR) and the auditor's material written communications 
with the District 

4.0 Annual Financial Risk Assessment and Risk Management. 

The Committee shall review and discuss with District management and the 
independent auditor the District's major financial risk exposures, and the steps 
management has taken to monitor and control those exposures. It is the Board's 
responsibility to ensure the District has adequate controls and plans for risk 
mitigation for areas beyond finance. 

Adopted May 6, 2020 9 
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MEMORANDUM 

TO: Audit Committee 

THROUGH: Audit Committee Chairman Ray Tulloch 

FROM: Paul Navazio 
Director of Finance 

SUBJECT: Update on External Audit Progress and Review of Draft Financial 
Statements 

DATE: October 26, 2021 

I. RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Audit Committee receive an informational update on 
the status of the independent audit of the District's financial statements for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. 

II. BACKGROUND 

The District, through the Audit Committee, has engaged Davis Farr, LLP to perform 
the independent audit of the District's financial statements for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2021. An audit work plan and schedule was presented to the Audit 
Committee at their meeting of June 9, 2021 (Attachment 1 ), and Davis Farr 
provided an interim status report to the committee at their meeting of August 13, 
2021. 

From management's perspective, the audit has been progressing consistent with 
the approved work plan and schedule. Highlights include: 

• Trail balances provided to auditors 
• Auditors begin final audit procedures onsite 
• Draft #1 of financial statements provided to auditors 

Sept. 24th 

Sept. 27th-Oct. 8th 

Oct. 18th 

Included as attachments to this memorandum are copies of the documentation 
requested by the auditors for both the Interim Audit (Provided by Client (PBC) list) 
and the ongoing final audit (Additional Request List), as well as copies of the first 
draft of the financial statements provided to Davis Farr. 
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Update on External Audit Progress -2-
and Review of Draft Financial Statements 

Next Steps 

October 26, 2021 

The audit work plan schedule calls for the auditor to provide comments on the first 
draft of the District's financial statements on October 22, 2021, with the second 
draft due to Davis Farr on October 29, 2021. Draft audit reports are scheduled to 
be issued in early November, with final audit opinion and report scheduled for the 
end of November. A meeting of the Audit Committee is planned in mid-November 
to review the draft reports, prior to the auditor issuing their final audit report. 

Attachments 
1) Audit Work Plan 
2) Document Requests Lists 

a. PBC Listing (Interim Audit) 
b. Additional Request List (Final Audit) 

3) Draft #1 - Financial Statements 
a. Financial Statements 
b. Notes to the Financial Statements 
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

Audit Work Plan 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

The following work plan is subject to modification but represents the work plan and milestones for 
the completion of the annual financial statement audit. 

Target Date Task Assigned To 

April 15, 2021 Davis Farr 

April 29, 2021 Audit Committee 

May 5, 2021 Davis Farr 

May 14, 2021 Finance staff 

May 17, 2021 Davis Farr 

May 28, 2021 Davis Farr 

May 28, 2021 Davis Farr 

June 30, 2021 Finance staff 

August 15, 2021 Finance staff 

August 30, 2021 Finance staff 

Late Aug 2021 Audit Committee 

September 24, 2021 Finance staff 

September 27, 2021 Davis Farr 

October 8, 2021 Davis Farr 

October 15, 2021 Finance staff 

October 22, 2021 Davis Farr 

October 22, 2021 Davis Farr 

October 29, 2021 Finance staff 

Early November Finance staff 

Mid November Audit Committee 

End of November Davis Farr 

Mid-December Audit Committee 

No later than Dec 31, Davis Farr 

2021 

Audit Committee Meeting 

IVGID Finance staff 

Davis Farr 

Task 

Draft audit engagement letter due 

Meeting #1 with auditors and staff to discuss scope and timing of 

audit and upcoming changes in accounting and auditing 

standards impacting the organization 

Provide interim audit request list to Finance staff 

Upload interim audit request items to FTP site 

Begin interim audit procedures on-site 

Status meeting with Finance staff 

Provide final audit request list and confirmation instructions to 

Finance staff 

Due date for returning confirmation requests to Davis Farr 

Accounts Payable Cut-off 

Complete capital project closeouts and depreciation entries 

Meeting #2 to discuss progress of year end close, issues 

identified during interim audit, complex accounting issues, and 

review final audit timeline 

Upload tria l balance and final audit request items to FTP site 

Begin fina l audit procedures on-site 

Status meeting with Finance staff 

Draft #1 of financial statements due to Davis Farr (Financial 

Section only) 

Status meeting with Finance staff 

Review comments on Draft #1 and draft SAS letters due to 

Finance staff 

Draft #2 of financial statements due to Davis Farr (inclusive of 

Introductory Section, MD&A, and Statistical Section) 

Mailout of draft reports to Audit Committee (full Draft annual 

report) 

Meeting #3 to review draft reports and results of audit 

Finalize audit opinion and reports after Finance staff makes any 

necessary changes as a result of audit committee meeting 

Meeting #4 to receive and review Final CAFR document 

Present final reports to Board of Trustees 
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Incline Village General Improvement District 
FINAL PBC LISTING 

FYE 6/30/21 
The following is a listing of schedules and reports we would like to request to be prepared or copied in 
preparation of our audit examination of the District for the year ended June 30, 2021 As a reminder, we 
prefer to receive documentation electronically. 

Number Category PBC Item 

1 Trial Balances Final Trial Balance Summary (balance sheet, revenues, expenditures) for all 
funds and accounts for FY (excel format). 

2 Cash and Copy of the Treasurer's Reports for June 30 
Investments 

3 Cash and Schedule of investments identifying investment type, maturity, and end of 
Investments vear ratina for GASB 40 disclosures. 

4 Cash and Schedule of investments identifying investment's fair value hierarchy level 
Investments (level 1 2 or 3) for GASB 72 disclosures. 

5 Cash and June 2021 bank reconciliations and statements for all accounts with 
Investments reconciling items, including a supporting list of outstanding checks and 

deposits in transit. Please also provide July bank statements. 

6 Receivables Aging schedules of all receivables and due from other governments 

7 Inventory Inventory listing as of June 30 and documentation of last inventory count 

8 Prepaids Listina of prepaid items 
9 Deoosists Listina of deosoits 

10 Capital Assets Lead schedule of capital assets that includes beginning balance (PY audit 
balance), additions, deletions, and ending balance - by type. Same for 
accumulated depreciation - by type. Separate schedule for Enterprise Funds. 

11 Capital Assets Supporting detail of capital assets and accumulated depreciation - by type 
with reconciliations to capital outlay and other supporting detail for additions 
and deletions (including original costs, useful lives, current and accumulated 
depreciation). Separate schedule for Enterprise Funds. 

12 Capital Assets Calculation of gain/loss on disposals of capital and other assets, if any. 

13 Capital Assets Schedule of capital projects included in construction-in-progress. 

14 Interfund Lead schedule of due to/from other funds (with reasons for significant 
Activities balances). If any due to/due from has been recorded for more than one year, 

consider reclassifying it as an advance. 

15 Interfund Lead schedule for changes in advances to/from other funds. For any new 
Activities advances, please provide the new advance agreement. 

16 Interfund Lead schedule of inter-fund transfers (with reasons for significant transfers). 
Activities If the transfer was made out of a restricted fund with restricted resources, 

please provide documentation (i.e. fund expenditure report, etc.) to support 
the fund that received the transfer incurred sufficient eligible expenditures 
(allowable expenditures recorded in the fund must be at least the dollar 
amount of the transfer amount). 

17 Accounts Subsequent check register from July 2021 - up to date. 
Pavable 

18 Accounts Invoice List by GL Account as of June 30. 
Pavable 

19 Deposits Detail of deposits payable by vendor/customer as of June 30. 
Pavable 

20 Accrued Supporting schedule of accrued payroll with supporting documentation (e.g. 
Liabilities . iournal entrv oavroll reaister etc.) 

21 Accrued Supporting schedule of other payroll liabilities accounts. 
Liabilities r, ___ ~ ~f ') 
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Incline Village General Improvement District 
FINAL PBC LISTING 

FYE 6/30/21 
The following is a listing of schedules and reports we would like to request to be prepared or copied in 
preparation of our audit examination of the District for the year ended June 30, 2021 As a reminder, we 
prefer to receive documentation electronically. 

Number Category PBC Item 

22 Unearned Detailed listing of unearned revnue 
Revenue 

23 Long-Term Lead schedule of changes in long-term liabilities (including amounts due within 
Liabilities one year) for governmental and business-type activities as of June 30. The 

schedule should identify the beginning balance, additions, deletions, and 
ending balance. 

24 Lease Schedule of lease commitments and all lease agreements 
Commitments 

25 Fund Fund balance reconciliation to prior year audited fund balance. 
Balance/Net 

Assets 
26 Fund For governmental funds, provide a schedule of amounts that should be 

Balance/Net reported in the Restricted, Committed, and Assigned Categories in accordance 
ASSPtc; with GASB 54. 

Page 2 of2 
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ADDITIONAL REQUESTS 

I tem C ategory Description D ate R equeste d 
27 Restricted Please provide update and sufficient documentation to supprot the 

Deposit - current status of the Resctricted Deposits held in Lawsuit for 6/9/21 
Lawsuit Footnote 20 (PY CAFR) 

28 Tax Abatements Please provide support for all tax abatements sufficient to update 
6/9/21 

footnote 21. 
29 Expenses Please provide a check register and wire register for all non-payroll 

6/9/21 
checks and wires issued durina the year. 
GL transaction detail report for Beach Fund AR totaling to $13,087 
This is made up of the following accounts: 

A.1 Receivables - 390-00-000-0205 9/28/2021 
- 390-00-000-0870 
- 390-00-000-0875 

A.2 Cash and 
Wells Fargo July Bank Statement 9/28/2021 

Investments 

For the receivables listed on tab A.3, indicate the following: 

A.3 Receivables 
- If the amount has been received or not. 

9/28/2021 
- If it has been received, please provide evidence of receipt. 
- If not yet received, indicate when it is estimated to be received. 

FY2020 ending balance detail of AR for the following accounts: 
- 320-00-000-0205 
- 390-00-000-0205 

A.4 Receivables 
- 390-00-000-0870 

9/28/2021 - 390-00-000-0875 
- 100-00-000-0470 
- 360-00-000-0470 
- 390-00-000-0470 

A.5 Receivables Please orovide resoonses to the auestionnaire on tab A.5. 9/28/2021 

A.6 
Interest 

Please provide narrative explaining how interest is allocated. 9/28/2021 Receivable 

Grants 
Aging receivable report for ski fund grants receivable totaling to 

A.7 
Receivable 

$369,662 and recreation fund grants receivable totaling to $4,250. 9/28/2021 
*Please also provide the receivables for these funds for prior year 

A.8 
Grants 

Grant agreement for ski fund grant. 9/28/2021 Receivable 
Please provide support for the tax receivables for the following 

A.9 Tax Receivable 
accounts: 

9/28/2021 - 390-00-000-0320 
- 360-00-000-0320 

Proprietary Please provide aging detail report for the following accounts: 
A.10 Fund - 200-00-000-0210 9/28/2021 

Receivables - 200-00-000-0250 
Detail inventory listing for the following accounts: 

A.11 Inventory - 320-00-000-0710 10/1/2021 
- 410-00-000-0715 
Provide a brief narrative to explain the inventory total decrease 

A.12 Inventory 
from prior year for the following accounts: 

10/1/2021 - 320-00-000-0710 
- 410-00-000-0715 

A.13 
Interest Provide clarification regarding the interest receivable and interest 

10/1/2021 Receivable revenue relationshios on tabs A.13. 
A.14 Preoaids Invoice suooort for the invoices listed on tab A.14 10/1/2021 

A.15 
Accounts 

Invoice support for the transactions listed on tab A.15 10/1/2021 Pavable 
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ADDITIO NAL REQUESTS 

It em C t a egory D . t " escnp 10 n D t R a e t d eaues e 

A.16 Accounts 
Provide list of unprocessed invoices, if applicable. 10/1/2021 

Payable 

A.17 Accounts 
Accounts payable listing for FY21 year end and FY20 year end. 10/1/2021 

Payable 

A.18 Other Liabilities 
Detail listing of the unearned revenue comprised of accounts on 

10/1/2021 
tab A.18 

A.19 Ot her Liabilities 
Detail listing of the due to other government account 390-00-000-

10/1/2021 
2555 that amounts to $15 126. 

A. 20 
Accrued 

Detail listing of the interest payable accounts listed on tab A.20 10/1/2021 Expenses 
I t was noted that there are two funds which are currently reporting 

A. 21 
Cash and negative cash . We will need to book a due to/from with another 

10/1/2021 
Investments fund to cure these balances - please let us know which fund this 

would come from. 

A.22 
Cash and Please provide the Mark-to-Market adjustment along with 

10/1/2021 
Investments supportinq schedules for how amounts were calcu lated . 

A.23 Other Liabilities Provide detail l isting for each account on tab A.23 
10/5/201 

A.24 Receivables 
Provide detailed explanation for account changes in accounts listed 
on A.24. 10/5/201 

Grants 
Provide support for the GL transactions(amount highl ighted in 

A.25 
Receivab le 

yellow) listed on tab A.25 . Screengrab was obtained from support 
provided at reauest A.7. 10/5/201 

A.26 
Grants 

Recreation grant agreement 
Receivable 10/5/201 

Please provide contact information for lead engineer or project 
manager for the following CIP projects 

A.27 Capital Assets - Burnt Cedar Swimming and Toddler Pool Resurface and 
Mechanical Improvements 
- Effluent Exoort Line - Phase II 10/5/201 

A.28 Analytical Responses to analytical questions on A.28 tabs 10/5/2021 
A.29 TOT TOT additional reauests sent Via email 10/4/2021 

A.30 
Internal 

Third party ski revenues, request from Anne in person 
Controls 10/5/2021 

A.31 Fund Balance Reconciliation of recreation expenses and fund balance for PY 10/5/2021 

A.32 Pension Plan 
Plan information and actuarial report or funded letter as discussed 
with Jeff 10/5/2021 

A.33 
Deferred 

Detail of account 100-00-000-2805 that totals to $243,512 . 
Inflows 10/7/2021 

A.34 
Accrued 

Payroll register fo r last period in June 2021 
Expenses 10/7/2021 

A.35 
Accrued 

Payroll reg ister for first period in July 2021 
Expenses 10/7/2021 

A.36 Budget Please provide the budget to be including in the ACFR 10/7/2021 

A.37 Journal Entries 
Please provide listing of all non-payroll non-recurring journal 
entries for the fiscal year 10/7/2021 

A.38 TOT Testing 
Bank statements for operating account for FY21, request from 
Marty in person 10/7/2021 

A.39 
Long-Term 

Responses to bond questions. Sent via email from Anah iz 
Liabilities 10/7/2021 

A.40 Grant Revenue Please provide a Schedule of Federal Expenditures 10/7/2021 
Board resolution regarding Uti lity Fund fees that include a charge 

A.41 
Board that was collected specifically for the affluent pipeline project. 

Resolution Resolution regarding the Board setting aside $11.5m last year+ 
investment earn inas for the Proiect. 10/7/2021 

Board 
Board resolution regarding recreation fees charged to residents 

A.42 
Resolution 

and the Board identified how much of the fees can be spent on 
operations and capital. 10/7/2021 
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ADDITIONAL REQUESTS 

I tem Cateciorv Descnot1on Date Reaueste d 

A.43 
Lease 

Most recent AT&T lease agreement 
Commitments 10/7/2021 

A.44 
Lease 

Most recent American Tower lease agreement 
Commitments 10/7/2021 

A.45 Other Assets 
Provide invoice support for 3 samples of inventory selections on 
tab A.45. 10/12/2021 

A.46 Other Assets Provide evidence of payment suooort for invoice on tab A.46. 10/12/2021 

A.47 Capital Assets 
Removal of assets AJE if determined to make, per email from 
Shelby 10/12 10/12/2021 

A.48 
Deferred Account # 100-00-000-2805 please provide explanation of what 
Inflows this account is 10/12/2021 

Fiduciary 
Tahoe Water Supply and Veterans Community Organization what 

A.49 is the source of contributions? Does IVGID have access to their 
Activities 

bank account. 10/12/2021 

A.SO Pipeline 
Invoice/payment support for items on tab A.SO as requested via 
email from Jeff 10/12/2021 

A.51 General Contact information (email and phone#) for Public Works Director 
10/12/2021 
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2021 

Prima!X Government 
Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities Total 
ASSETS 

Cash, cash equivalents, and investments $ 28,657,443 $ 15,828,516 $ 44,485,959 
Receivables: 

Accounts receivable, net 78,020 1,356,069 1,434,089 
Interest on investments 16,415 3,790 20,205 

Taxes and Fees from Washoe County 31,768 31,768 
Grants Receivable 373,912 12,881 386,793 

Due from other governments 505,377 505,377 
Inventories 495,353 161,068 656,421 
Prepaid items 779,979 779,979 
Restricted assets: 

Restricted Deposits 386,239 324,306 710,545 

Capital assets: 

Land 17,290,327 6,715,544 24,005,871 

Construction in progress 1,939,563 1,035,834 2,975,397 
Buildings, Structures, Improvements, Infrastructure, 

Equipment and Vehicles, net of accumulated depreciation 39,627,566 59,009,908 98,637,474 
Total assets 90,181,962 84,447,916 174,629,878 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 2,738,837 288,273 3,027,110 
Accrued personnel costs 1,397,480 333,705 1,731,185 
Accrued interest payable 8,465 46,566 55,031 

Due to other governments 15,126 15,126 
Unearned revenue 2,201,990 171,921 2,373,911 

Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due v,1ithin one year 378,000 573,891 951,891 
Due in more than one year 389,044 2,972,340 3,361,384 

Total liabilities 7,128,942 4,386,696 11,515,638 

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 
Deferred Inflow 243,512 243,512 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 58,090,412 63,215,055 121,305,467 

Restricted 1,745,975 324,306 2,070,281 

Unrestricted 22,973,121 16,521,859 39,494,980 
Total net position $ 82,809,508 $ 80,061,220 $ 162,870,728 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Program Revenues 

Functions/Programs 

Primary government: 
Governmental activities: 
General government 
Community Services 
Beach 

Total governmental-type activities 

Business-type activities: 
Utilities 

Total primary government 

Expenses 

$ 2,888,510 
18,992,785 

2,152,079 

24,033,374 

11,387,762 

$ 35,421,136 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 
Combined taxes 

s 

$ 

Charges for 
Services 

162 
16,221,278 

839,405 

17,060,845 

12,831,060 
29,891,905 

Facility Fees (1\ssessed) 
Unrestricted investment earnings 
Gain Qoss) on sale of capital assets 
Insurance Proceeds 
Miscellaneous revenues 
Transfers In (Out) 

Total general revenues and transfers 
Changes in net position 

Net position - beginning, as previously reported 
Prior Period 1\djustment 

Net positions, beginning, as adjusted 
Net position - ending 

The notes to the financial statements arc an integral part of this statement. 

$ 

$ 

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions 

1,440 

17,000 

18,440 

39,857 
58,297 

s 

$ 

Capital 
Grants and 

Contributions 

88,505 

88,505 

88,505 

Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Changes in Net Position 
Primary Government 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities 

$ (2,886,908) $ 
(2,666,002) 

{1,312,674} 

(6,865,584} 

1,483,155 
(6,865,5842__ 1,483,155 

1,812,958 

1,888,448 
6,569,409 

73,594 33,681 

(63,085) (153,379) 

127,897 

--
10,409,221 (119,698} 

3,543,637 1,363,457 

79,265,871 78,697,763 

79,265,871 78,697,763 

$ 82,809,508 $ 80,061,220 

Total 

$ (2,886,908) 
(2,666,002) 

(1,312,674} 

(6,865,584} 

1 483,155 

- _(t382,4292 

1,812,958 

1,888,448 
6,569,409 

107,275 

(216,464) 

127,897 

10,289,523 
4,907,094 

157,963,634 

157,963,634 
$ 162,870,728 
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE 30, 2021 

GENERAL 
ASSETS 

(:ash, cash cc.1uiYalcnts and investments $ 5,925,821 
Accounts rccci,·ahlc, net 

Interest receivable on i1wcstmcnts 10,890 
Ta:-:cs and Fees from \'\'ashoc County 

Grants receivable 
Due from nthcr governments 358,784 
I nn~ntorics 

Prepaid items 582,459 

Restricted dcposils 243,51J 

Total assets $ _l,121,46_(i_ 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
J,iabilitics 

Accounts payable $ 1,522,3911 
Accrued personnel costs 1,228,211 
I )uc to other governments 

Unearned revenue 41 
T<>tal liabilities 2 750 642 

Deferred Inflow of Resources 

Deferred Inflow 243,512 

Fund balance 
Non-spcnJablc 582,459 
Restricted 1,6113,248 
C()tntnittcd 

Unassigned 1 941 605 
Total fund halancc 4,127,312 

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 7 121 466 

The notes to the financial statements arc an intc.t,rral part of this statement. 

COMMUNITY 
SERVICES 

SPECIAL REV. 

$ 17,598,960 

64,964 
5,525 

27,154 
373,912 

62,868 
419,557 
197,520 

141,727 

$ 18 892187 

$ 280,727 

99,235 

2148638 
2 528 600 

369,662 

617,077 
141,727 

15,235,121 

15,993,925 

,,,! 18,89'.!,![7 

BEACH COMMUNITY BEACH COMMUNITY BEACH TOTAL 
SPECIAL SERVICES CAPITAL SERVICES DEBT GOVERNMENTAL 

REVENUE CAP. PRO{ECTS PRO!ECTS DEBTSERV. SERVICE FUNDS 

$ 2,171,554 $ $ 2,7:\2,635 $ 29,576 s 1,450 $ 28,659,996 
13,056 78,020 

16,415 
4,614 31,768 

373,912 
83,725 505,377 

419,557 

779,979 
1,000 386,239 

$ 2473 949 s _$ ___ 2,732,63~ _ _L --------12,iZ.CL $ 1 450 s .,1i251~63 

s 12,673 $ 105,443 $ 781,824 $ $ $ 2,703,057 
8,000 1,335,446 

15,126 15,126 
53 311 2 201 990 
89110 105 443 781 824 6255619 

613,174 

1,199,536 
1,000 1,745,975 

2,383,839 (105,443) 1,9511,811 29,576 1,450 19,495,354 
1 941 605 

2_,:JM,839 _ _ (105,443) 1,950,811 29,576 1,450 24,382,470 

_$ __ .2,473,949_ _j__ ~-.~ $ ___ 2,732,635 _ _L 29 576 _L _1,450 $ 31,251,263 



INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF BALANCE SHEET FOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE GOVERNMENT WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2021 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position that are not included 
in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet (because): 

Total Fund Balance for Governmental Activities 

Capital Assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and are not financial 
resources, and therefore are not reported in that fund 

Accrued interest, not to be liquidated from currently 
available resources 

Capital Grants in Deferred Inflows due to collection beyond 60 days 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable 
in the current period, and therefore are not reported in that fund 

Unamortized Bond Discount, for the remaining bond liability, and 
therefore not reported in the fund 

Total Net Position of Internal Services Fund, as it is reported as a governmental 
activity since a majority of the services are consumed by the 
governmental -type activities 

Net Position of Governmental Activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

$ 24,382,470 

58,805,670 

(8,465) 

369,662 

(769,000) 

1,956 

27,215 

$ 82,809,508 
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

REVENUES 
Ad \':tlorcm t:txcs 

Personal Property Tax 
Intcrgnn-rnmcntill 

(;()llsrilid-,1rcd t;1xcs 

Local Gnwrnnwnt T,1x :\ct 

!--en-ices 
Ch;1rges fnr :,:;erviccs 
Facilitr Fccs 

ln1crfund :,:;t'r;iccs 

Opern1ing ( lr:mts 

C:1pit,1! (ir.mts 

Im·cstment income 

/\lisccllancnus 

Tot.1\rcYC!l\H'S 

EXPENDITURES 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT 

l\l:1nagcr 
Tmst<·es 

Accn11nt1ng 

Infi>rmatmn ~cryices 

I Tuman Rcsmin.:cs 
IIealth & \\'t:-llncss 
(:(unnmnity & l~mplr,ycc Hc-btinns 
Administratum 

C1pit:1! Outby 
RECREATION 
Ch:tmpinnslup c-;nlf 
)\fount.tin (1olf 

1:acil1tics 

:,:;ki 
Cornm11ni1y Progr.unming and Recreation Cc,ntcr 
Parks 

Tennis 
Rcrr('atinn :\dministr:1ti<,n 

Be:1ch 

('lv,mninn~hin (;r,lf 

Cr,mmuni1y Pnigr.ummng ,ind Recreation Center 

Parks 

Tennis 

Rccre,1tton :\dmims!rnti1H1 

Bt•ach 
DehtSt•n·1n• 

Jlnncipal 

lnlt'ft'St 

Total expcndi111rcs 

Excess n·n·nucs (expenditures) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: 
Procl'eds frf)ln S,ile of C1.pit:1l and lnf:mnhk :\sst'fs 

ln~urnnct' Pn1cc('ds 

Trnnd('fS In (( hit) - F,u:i!i1y Fci'~ for C.1p11al Expenditure 

Trwsfrrs In (Out) Facility Fees for Debt St•n·ice 

Tr:msft•rs In (O11t) From (for) O!hcr Somct'S 

Net ch;mgt• in fond habm:e 

Fund lhLtnn>,J11\y 1, ,1s rcp011ed 

Prior peri11t! adjustnwnt 

Fund h:1lance, Julr 1 as ;1dj11~ted 
Fm1tl halance,June 30 

GENERAL 

l,760,IH9 
52.909 

1,629,192 

259,2:16 
!,HO 

68,488 

8)62 

3,779,696 

'J97,556 

1-11,722 

:n-1,601 
9-10,92-1 

2,999 

16,218 
165,(61 
565,250 

.ViS,878 

2.!.922,799 

856,897 

8561.897 

4,630,151 

(1,359,736) 
3,270,115 
4.!.127,312 

The nntcs to the firnmcial st;llements arc ;m mtq;,;ral part of this stalemt'nt 

COMMUNITY 
SERVICES 

SPECIAL REV. 

36,997 

16,092,512 

1,762,766 

91,769 

17,000 

·1,171 

119,697 

18,125,212 

.),342,506 

1,0M,000 

1,005,717 

6,60.\7R6 

1,938,411 

758,179 

249,1)6() 

377,556 

15,289,215 

2,835,997 

(537,H.>S) 

2.:..::!.~162 

15,280,913 

(1,637,·I00) 
1\6H,513 
15,9-11,675 

BEACH 
SPECIAL 

REVENUE 

H39,Hl5 

65.),588 

635 

1,-193 628 

1,700,.121 

1,700,421 

(206,793) 

(206,793) 

2,591,632 

2,591.!.632 
2,384,839 

COMMUNITY 
SERVICES 

CAP. PROJECTS 

536,571 

88,505 

625,076 

112,217 

11,330 
60,107 

32-1,141 

87,206 
Mi,.H9 

7.l,392 

7,000 

785,.HS 

79,296 

(36,345) 
115,169 

252,906 

170,123 

798,(,47 

2,907,253 

(2,282,177) 

1,500 

537,835 

(1,7•12,842) 

1,637,399 

12637,399 
(105,443) 

BEACH 
CAPITAL 

PRO!ECTS 

:',,1%,016 

3,196,016 

23,1,767 

1,010,438 

1}45,205 

1,950,811 

1,950,811 

1,950,811 

COMMUNITY 
SERVICES 

DEBTSERV. 

·H2,7·t8 

412,748 

362,075 

211.097 

38\172 

29,576 

29,576 

29,576 

BEACH 
DEBT 

SERVICE 

7,720 

7,720 

5,925 
3·15 

6,270 

l,f50 

1,450 

1,450 

TOTAL 
GOVERNMENTAL 

FUNDS 

1,760,(J.19 

52,909 

1,629,192 

259,2% 

38,437 
16,931,917 

6,569,,H)9 

91,769 

17,()(X) 

88,SOS 

73,59·1 

128,059 
27,640,096 

.W7,55<i 

l•t.l,722 

324,601 
9,10,924 

2,999 

16,218 
165,651 
565,250 

365,878 

1,454,723 

1,025,330 

1,065,824 

6,927,927 

2,025,617 
82-1,528 

322,152 
38-1,556 

1,935,1118 

7H5,415 
79,296 

(36,3·15) 
l 15.469 
252,906 

170,12.l 

798,M? 

1,010,HR 

368,000 

21,4-12 

24i.:l5·1,335 

3,185,761 

t,500 

\187,261 

2.,,1.10,095 

(2,997,136) 

21,142,959 
2·1,330,220 



INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCES FOR THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE GOVERNMENT WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Amounts reported for governmental activities are different because the Governmental Funds account for 
a flow of resources while the Statement of Activities is on a full accrual basis of accounting: 

Total Net Change in Fund Balance for Governmental Funds 

Capital Assets acquired during the year and capitalized 

Depreciation expense for the fiscal year 

Gain (Loss) on assets sold 

Principal paid on long-term liabilities, including bonds payable 

Interest accrued versus paid 

Amortize Bond Discount for fiscal year 

Total Change in Net Position of Internal Services Fund, as it is reported as a 
governmental activity since a majority of the services are consumed by the 
governmental -type activities 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

s 3,187,261 

3,541,827.00 

(3,352,609.00) 

(64,585) 

368,000 

2,771 

(3,357) 

(135,671) 

s 3,543,637 
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
GENERAL FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Ad valorem taxes s 1,770,000 s 1,770,000 s 1,760,049 s (9,951) 
Personal Property Tax 12,000 12,000 52,909 40,909 
Intergovernmental: 

Consolidated Tax 1,407,000 1,407,000 1,629,192 222,192 

Local Government Tax Act 249,000 249,000 259,256 10,256 
Investment earnings 131,400 131,400 68,488 (62,912) 
Miscellaneous 2,400 2,400 9,802 7,402 

Total revenues 3,571,800 3,571,800 3,779,696 207,896 

EXPENDITURES 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT: 
Manager 437,805 437,805 397,556 40,249 
Trustees 216,018 216,018 143,722 72,296 
Accounting 1,013,025 1,013,024 860,946 152,078 
Information Services 1,016,687 1,016,687 940,924 75,763 
Human Resources 985,733 985,735 802,402 183,333 
Health and Wellness 42,646 42,646 16,218 26,428 
Communications 278,189 278,189 165,651 112,538 
Administration 529,996 529,996 565,250 (35,254) 
Central Services Cost Allocation Income (1,471,440) (1,335,748) 1,335,748 
Capital Outlay 650,150 650,150 365,878 284,272 

Total expenditures 3,698,809 5,170,250 2,922,799 2,247,451 

Excess ( deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (127,009) (1,598,450) 856,897 2,455,347 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Contingency 
Operating Transfers (Out) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balance (127,009) (1,598,450) 856,897 2,455,347 

Fund Balance, July 1, as previously reported 3,935,986 3,935,986 4,630,151 694,165 
Prior Year Adjustment (1,359,736) (1,359,736) 
Fund Balance, July 1, as adjusted 3,935,986 3,935,986 3,270,415 (665,571) 

Fund balance,_lune 30 s 3,808,977 s 2,337,536 s 4,127,312 s 1,789,776 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
COMMUNITY SERVICES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Charges for Services 

Championship Golf s 3,391,290 $ 3,391,291 $ 3,214,950 s (176,341) 
Mountain Golf 818,834 818,834 809,745 (9,089) 
Facilities 1,440,299 1,440,299 790,683 (649,616) 
Ski 10,148,735 10,148,734 10,206,918 58,184 

Community Programming and Recreation Center 1,007,900 1,007,900 1,014,837 6,937 
Parks 38,700 26,600 22,350 (4,250) 
Tennis 100,400 100,400 156,631 56,231 
Recreation Administration (317,830) (317,830) (123,602) 194,228 

Subtotal Charges for Services 16,628,328 16,616,228 16,092,512 (523,716) 
Facility Fees 1,763,645 1,763,645 1,762,766 (879) 
Intergoyemmental Services 21,700 21,700 36,997 15,297 
Interfund Services 98,849 98,849 91,769 (7,080) 

Operating Grants 17,000 17,000 17,000 
Capital Grants 
Investment income 52,500 52,500 4,471 (48,029) 
Miscellaneous - other 118,130 130,230 119,697 (10,533) 

Total revenues 18,700,152 18,700,152 18,125,212 (574,940) 

EXPENDITURES 
COMMUNITY SERVICES OPERATIONS: 
Championship Golf 3,717,479 3,717,478 3,342,506 374,972 
Mountain Golf 1,141,209 1,141,209 1,014,000 127,209 

Facilities 1,504,583 1,504,583 1,005,717 498,866 
Ski 8,075,343 8,075,342 6,603,786 1,471,556 

Community Programming and Recreation Center 2,212,155 2,212,155 1,938,411 273,744 

Parks 856,535 856,535 758,179 98,356 

Tennis 226,781 226,781 249,060 (22,279) 
Recreation Administration 415,786 415,786 377,556 38,230 
COMM. SERVICES CAPITAL OUTLAY 
Championship Golf 

Mountain Golf 
Facilities 

Ski 
Community Programming and Recreation Center 

Parks 
Tennis 

Recreation Administration 
COMM. SERVICES DEBT SERVICE 

Principal 

Interest 
Total expenditures 18,149,871 18,149,869 15,289,215 2,860,654 

Excess (deficiency) of re\'enues over expenditures 550,281 550,283 2,835,997 2,285,714 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Sale of assets 

Insurance Proceeds 
Transfers In (537,835) (537,835) 
Transfers (Out) - Capital Projects (5,594,546) 

Transfers (Out) - Debt Service 
Total other financing sources (uses) (5,594,546) (537,835) (537,835) 

Net change in fund balance (5,044,265) 550,283 2,298,162 1,747,879 

Fund Balance, July 1, as reported 12,360,444 12,360,444 15,280,913 2,920,469 

Prior period adjustment (1,637,400) (1,637,400) 

Fund balance,July 1 as adjusted 12,360,444 12,360,444 13,643,513 1,283,069 

Fund balance, June 30 7,316,179 12,910,727 15,941,675 4,668,348 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
BEACH SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Charges for Services 

Beach s 831,955 s 831,955 s 839,405 s 7,450 
Facility Fees 658,580 658,580 653,588 (4,992) 
Investment earnings 11,250 11,250 635 (10,615) 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 1,501,785 1,501,785 1,493,628 (8,157) 

EXPENDITURES 
BEACH RECREATION: 
Beach - Operations 1,906,299 1,906,299 1,700,421 205,878 
Capital Outlay 
Debt Service 

Principal 
Interest 

Total expenditures 1,906,299 1,906,299 1,700,421 205,878 

Excess ( deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (404,514) (404,514) (206,793) 197,721 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers In 
Transfers (Out) - Capital Projects 
Transfers (Out) - Debt Service 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balance (404,514) (404,514) (206,793) 197,721 

Fund Balance,July 1 2,159,262 1,749,171 2,591,632 842,461 

Fund balance,June 30 s 1,754,748 s 1,344,657 s 2,384,839 s 1,040,182 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
IVNE 30, 2021 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash eguinlents 

Short term investments 
Accounts receivable 
Interest receinble 
Grants receivable 
lm:entories 
Prepaid expenses 

Total current assets 
Noncurrent assets: 

Investments - long-term 
Contractual deposits 
Restricted deposit for debt sen-ice reserve 
Restricted for TRP A Deposits 

Capital Assets 
Land 
Construction in progress 
Buildings and structures 
Improvements and Infrastructure 
Eguipment and vehicles 
Total capital assets 
Less: accumulated depreciation 
Total capital assets (net) 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued personnel costs 
Accrued interest payable 
Unearned revenue 
Refundable deposits 
Current maturities of long-term debt 

Total current liabilities 

Non-current liabilities: 
Non-current Jong term debt 

Total non-current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 
Restricted for Capital Projects 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

Business - type 
Activities 
Enterprise 

Utility 

Fund 

s 14,320,611 

1,507,905 

1,356,069 

3,790 

12,881 

161,068 

17,362,324 

100 
230,224 

93,982 

324,306 

6,715,544 
1,035,834 

16,012,482 

116,830,031 

3,817,458 

144,411,349 

Q7,650,063) 
66,761,286 

67,085,592 

84,447,916 

288,273 

333,705 

46,566 

171,921 

573,891 

1,414,356 

2,972,340 

2,972,340 

4,386,696 

63,215,055 

324,306 

16,521,859 

s 80,061,220 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

s 

s 

Governmental 
Activities 
Internal 

Services Fund 

(2,553) 

75,796 

73,243 

253,870 

253,870 

(202,084) 
51,786 

51,786 

125,029 

35,780 

62,034 

97,814 

97,814 

51,786 

(24,571) 

27,215 
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Business - type 
Activities Governmental 
Enterprise Activities 

Utility Internal 
Fund Services Fund 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Sales and fees s 12,870,917 s 
Interfund serYices 2,417,504 

Total operating revenues 12,870,917 2,417,504 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Wages and benefits 4,201,417 1,789,054 

Cost of goods sold 7,125 
Services and supplies 2,030,189 726,776 

Defensible Space 100,000 

Central Services Cost 356,440 
Insurance 197,331 14,809 

Utilities 815,167 9,975 

Professional fees 227,259 

Depreciation 3,355,920 12,561 
Total operating expenses 11,290,848 2,553,175 

Operating income 1,580,069 (135,671) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Investment earnings 33,681 
Loss on sales of assets (153,379) 

Interest on bond debt (96,914) 
Total nonoperating reYenues (expenses) (216,612) 

Income before transfers and contributions 1,363,457 (135,671) 

Trans fer In (Out) 

Change in net position 1,363,457 (135,671) 

Total net position, July 1 78,697,763 162,886 

Total net position,Junc 30 s 80,061,220 s 27,215 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Business - type 
Activities Governmental 

Enterprise Activities 
Utility Internal 
Fund Services Fund 

CASH FLOWS FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from customers and users s 12,786,845 $ 

Receipts from interfund seffices pro,·ided 2,417,504 
Payments to suppliers (3,810,010) (746,238) 
Payments to employees (4,311,872) (1,799,373) 
Payments for interfund services used 

Net cash pro,·ided (used) by 

operating activities 4,664,963 (128,107) 

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Transfer (to) from other funds 

Net cash provided (used) by non-capital 
financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Acquisition of capital assets (2,829,903) 
Proceeds from sale of assets (153,379) 
Payments on capital debt (540,118) 
Capital contributions 
Interest expense (104,428) 

Net cash provided (used) by capital 
and related financing activities (3,627,828) 

CASH FLOWS FROM 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Im·estments purchased 
Long-term investments matured 3,820,858 
Investment earnings 47,451 

Net cash prm·ided (used) by 
in Yes ting actiYi ties 3,868,309 

Net change in cash 
and cash equirnlents 4,905,444 (128,107) 

Cash and cash equinlents, J u!y 1 9,415,167 125,554 

Cash, cash equivalents and investments,June 30 s 14,320,611 s (2,553) 

(Continued) 
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) 
to net cash provided (used) by operating 
activities: 

Operating income ~oss) 
Non-cash adjustments -

Depreciation 
Increase (decrease) in cash from changes in: 

Accounts receivable 

Operating Grant Receivable 
Due from other Governments 
Inventory 

Prepaid expenses 
Accounts payable 
Accrued personnel costs 
Unearned revenue 

Total adjustments 
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities s 

Business - type 

Activities 

Enterprise 

Utility 

Fund 

1,580,069 

3,355,920 

(88,067) 

(9,741) 

(66,758) 

(110,455) 
3,995 

3,084,894 
4,664,963 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

s 

s 

Governmental 

Activities 

Internal 

Services Fund 

(135,671) 

12,561 

(5,877) 

11,199 

(10,319) 

7,564 
(128,107) 
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - JUNE 30, 2021 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Reporting Entity 

The Incline Village General Improvement District (the "District") operates under provisions of the 
Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS), Chapter 318. Under the law, this General Improvement District has 
been granted authority by Washoe County to provide water, sewer and solid waste services, and 
recreational facilities and programs for the benefit of individuals owning property or residing within 
its geographical boundaries. The unincorporated rural areas of Incline Village and Crystal Bay, 
Washoe County, Nevada are within these boundaries. 

The District is governed by a board of five publicly elected trustees. The District is not included in 
any other governmental reporting entity. The District is a legally separate government and it is 
fiscally independent of any other governmental entity. The District is not financially accountable for 
any other entity. 

B. Basic Financial Statements - Government-wide financial statements 

The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net position and the statement of 
activities) report information on all of the activities of the District. 

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, the governmental activities column is presented 
on a consolidated basis, and is reflected on a full accrual, economic resource basis that recognizes all 
long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations. The District's net 
position is reported in three parts -net investment in capital assets, restricted; and unrestricted. 

The government-wide Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses 
of a given function are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific function. Program revenues include charges to customers who receive a 
direct benefit from goods or services. Grants and contributions are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a function. General revenues reflect items that are not 
included as either program revenue or grants and contributions. The Statement of Activities reduces 
gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues and grants. 

C. Basic Financial Statements - Fund financial statements 

The financial transactions of the District are reported in individual purpose based fund financial 
statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that 
comprise its assets, liabilities, deferred inflows and outflows, fund equity, revenues and 
expenditures/ expenses. Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and 
proprietary funds. The District has no fiduciary funds. Major funds for each fund type are presented 
as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

D. Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting - Fund financial statements 

The measurement focus describes the types of transactions and events that are reported in a fund's 
operating statement. Basis of accounting refers to the timing of revenues and how 
expenditures/ expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis 
of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus 
applied. 
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Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon 
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered available when they are 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. 
For this purpose, the District considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days 
under the accrual basis of accounting. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods 
in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. Operating expenses include 
the cost of sales and services, administration and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 
Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been 
incurred and all other eligibility requirements have been met. The Proprietary funds utilize the 
accrual basis of accounting. 

The District's internal services are presented in the proprietary fund's financial statements. The 
principal users of Internal Services (Fleet, Engineering and Buildings) are the District's utility and 
recreation program activities. All Internal Services are considered a governmental - type activity for 
the Government-wide financial statements. The majority of utilization of internal services is by the 
Utility Fund, Community Services and the Beach funds. The effect of inter-fund activity has not 
been eliminated from the Government-wide financial statements. 

The District uses the following funds (all considered Major): 

Governmental Funds -

General Fund - is the general operating fund of the District. It is used to account for all financial 
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The General Fund's primary 
function is to provide general administration for all other functions. 

Community Services - providing recreation to approximately 8,200 parcel owners, their guests and 
visitors. 

Special Revenue Fund - operation of golf, event facilities, downhill skiing, recreation 
and fitness programs, parks and tennis 
Capital Projects Fund - capital projects related to recreation functions 

Debt Service Fund - debt service related to recreation functions 

Beach - providing beach, picnic areas, boat launching and swimming pool programs to 
approximately 7,700 parcel owners and their guests. 

Special Revenue Fund - operations of beach functions 
Capital Projects Fund - capital projects related to beach functions 
Debt Service Fund - debt service related to beach functions 

Proprietary Funds -

Enterprise Funds - The Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations of the District's Utility 
Departments. Utility Fund - providing water, sewer, solid waste and recycling services to 
approximately 4,100 customers. 

Internal Service Funds - The Internal Service Fund accounts for the financing of goods or services 
provided by one department to other departments of the District. The District provides Fleet, 
Engineering, and Buildings Maintenance which includes repair and maintenance of the District's 
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vehicles and equipment, engineering services, and buildings maintenance. The Fleet, Engineering and 
Buildings Maintenance Departments also collectively provide planning, inspection, construction and 
maintenance for the District's structures and equipment. 

E. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

The District adheres to the Local Government Budget Act incorporated within Chapter 354 of the 
Nevada Revised Statutes, which includes the following major procedures to establish the budgetary 
data reflected in these financial statements. 

1. On or before April 15, 2020, the Board of Trustees filed a tentative budget with the Nevada 
Department of Taxation. Public hearings on the tentative budget were held after the third Monday in 
May. On May 27, 2020, at a public hearing, the Board adopted a final budget. On or before June 1, 
2020 the final budget was filed with the Nevada Department of Taxation. 

2. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) 
for all funds. Formal budgetary integration in the financial records is employed to enhance 
management control during the year for all funds requiring budgets. Budgets are adopted for all 
governmental and proprietary fund types. The governmental fund type budgets are adopted on a 
modified accrual basis and the proprietary funds types budgets are adopted on an accrual basis. The 
District can amend or augment the budget after following State Statutes and, if necessary, public 
hearing procedures. For fiscal year 2020-21, the Board of Trustees approved budget augmentations 
totaling $1,313,677. All budget augmentations amended the adopted capital improvement budget 
with the majority of the augmentations ($1,258,289) being related to the Burnt Cedar Pool 
Reconstruction Project. 

3. The legal level of budgetary control is at the fund level. Appropriations are adopted at the 
function level. Management has no amendment authority without the District's Board approval. 
Generally, the expenses in the proprietary funds also may not exceed appropriations. While 
management has flexibility to change the operating budgets of the proprietary funds but in practice 
rarely does so. Statutes do not require that enterprise fund capital outlay, debt service payments and 
other non-operating cash transactions, normally reflected in the balance sheet of the proprietary 
funds, to be limited by the budget. 

4. The District also presents select cash flow information in order to reflect all resources being used 
to provide for capital outlay, debt service payments and other transactions particularly in proprietary 
funds. This supplemental disclosure allows the District to identify the extent of current year items 
that are being paid from previously funded resources. The presentation includes items according to 
character and object. It also provides the Nevada Department of Taxation with requested 
information that compares to amounts reported on their budget forms. 

F. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

The District's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash-on-hand, demand deposits and 
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition 
that are held for routine expenditures. 

District Funds share bank accounts for operations, payroll and reimbursements. Activity between 
funds occurs in the regular activities of the District. The General Fund issues accounts payable and 
payroll and related benefits for all funds. To the extent payment has not occurred, but the cost was 
realized by the benefitted fund, internal balances for Due from or to Other Funds are established. 
These are cleared monthly tl1rough pooled cash. The combined pooled balances are monitored to 
assure no fund makes temporary loans to anotl1er, witl1in tl1e context of Nevada Revised Statute 
354.6118. 
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Short-term investments reflect items held with maturities within one year. These are predominantly 
certificates of deposit and agency issues. These provide funds for capital projects. 

Long-term investments reflect items held with maturities beyond one year. These include certificates 
of deposit and instruments issued by the Federal Government or its agencies. 

Nevada Revised Statutes authorize the District to invest in obligations of the U.S. Government or 
U.S. Treasury, providing maturities are 10 years or less from the date of purchase; the local 
government investment pool (LGIP) (operated by the Nevada State Treasurer); negotiable 
certificates of deposit issued by commercial banks or insured savings and loans; short-term 
negotiable notes or bonds issued by local governments; and bankers' acceptances eligible by law for 
rediscount with the Federal Reserve Banks not to exceed 180 days. 

Funds on deposit with LGIP are considered cash and cash equivalents. Even though the weighted 
average maturity of the underlying investments in the LGIP are greater than 90 days, the District can 
liquidate its deposits within a few days. The District has reported these deposits at cost plus accrued 
interest, which approximates fair value. 

The District's investments are stated at fair value as of the reporting date. These are categorized 
using fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted 
accounting principles. The hierarchy is based in the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value 
of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are 
significant other observable inputs: Level 3 are significant unobservable inputs. 

The District has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2021: 

U. S. Agencies securities are valued at quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs) 

Certificates of Deposits valued at quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs) 

G. Receivables 

Receivables reflected in the District's basic financial statements include monies due from other 
governments, grants receivable as well as other accounts receivable. 

Due From Other Governments. Property taxes are levied no later than July 10 of each year on property 
values assessed for the same year. The taxes may be paid in four installments as follows: the first 
installment is due on or before the third Monday in August, the second installment is due on or 
before the first Monday in October, the third installment is due on or before the first Monday in 
January, and the fourth installment is due on or before the first Monday in March. If payment of tl1e 
taxes is not made witlun ten days following the day the installments become due, penalties are 
assessed in accordance with NRS 361.483. Once the installments become delinquent, interest is 
added at the rate of 10 percent per annum. Taxes levied become a perpetual lien against tl1e property 
assessed until the tax and any penalty charges and interest which may accrue tl1ereon are paid. 
Washoe County assesses the property tax, bills, collects, and distributes tl1e property tax revenue. 

The District also receives certain tax revenues in the General Fund which are collected by the State 
of Nevada. These settlements arrive witlun 60 days of the month close when they are generated. 
The amounts are listed as Due from Other Governments. The District also has an operating grant 
from \"Xi'ashoe County, received monthly in arrears. The uncollected balance of this grant is carried in 
Due from Other Governments. 

Grants Receivable. The District has been awarded grants to finance the construction of various utility 
infrastructures, restoration of a creek zone and to upgrade a ballfield. These funds are earned when 
requisite construction costs are incurred. The District has recognized funds earned but not collected 
by a Grants Receivable. 

43 



Other Receivables. Accounts receivable reflects service charges to customers and resident for deposits 
or fees that are earned, but not collected. An allowance for doubtful accounts is considered and at 
present, the allowance totals $22,899. The District may file a tax lien for uncollected utility service 
fees. 

H. Inventory and Prepaid Items 

There are no inventories in the General Fund. Inventories of items for resale for Community 
Services Special Revenue and Proprietary Funds are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or 
market. 

Certain payments are made to vendors for costs applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. They are 
recognized under the consumption method when used. 

I. Restricted Assets 

The District has restricted several deposits for the benefit of other agencies in connection with 
performance under a retail operation, construction projects, and debt service. These agencies 
establish the restriction by regulation or agreement. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 monies 
within the General Fund fund balance are shown as restricted as a result of a pending settlement 
agreement related to a property tax dispute files with Washoe County by Incline Village property 
owners. 

J. Capital Assets 

Capital assets include land, buildings, machinery and equipment, or water rights which are reported in 
the applicable governmental or business-type activities column in the government-wide financial 
statements. If purchased or constructed, all capital assets are recorded at historical cost. Donated 
capital assets are valued at acquisition value as of the date of donation. The costs of normal 
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are 
not capitalized. Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets (all categories except land and 
construction in progress) is charged as an expense against each fund's operation. The District's 
policy is to capitalize assets with a normal useful life of three or more years. 

The District holds 4,272 Acre Feet of Water Rights. This represents about 1,405,000,000 gallons. 
The District's historical records cannot separately identify the cost of water rights from land. 

Activities of the General Fund include District administration, accounting and finance, information 
systems and technology, human resources, risk management, the General Manager's office, 
communications and the Board of Trustees. The land, buildings, furniture and equipment, including 
technology assets, represent items used in common by all of tl1e activities of the General Fund at tl1e 
District's administrative office. The computers and technology represent equipment of the 
Information Systems & Technology (IST) department that services the needs of the entire District. 
These assets are presented as a part of government-wide net assets. 

Activities of the Community Services Special Revenue Fund include two 18-hole golf courses, a large 
and small meeting facility, a ski resort, a recreation center, parks, tennis center, a skateboard park and 
green spaces. Venue improvements includes the cost of developing program ready locations. 

Activities of the Beach Special Revenue Fund includes three beaches with restricted access. One has 
a watercraft launch ramp and storage areas for paddleboards and kayaks. Two beaches have 
concession stands and playground areas. One beach provides swimming and wading pools. 
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Utility capital assets include traditional distribution lines, tanks, pumps and treatment. However, 
since the District is located in the Lake Tahoe Basin, the number of pumps, tanks and export lines is 
increased due to the requirements to manage in a mountainous and environmentally sensitive area. 

The District has a number of Construction in Progress items related to major projects that span 
multiple fiscal years as well as the fact that the fiscal year-end falls in the middle of the active 
acquisitions season. The District accumulates costs through a series of pre-design, design and 
acquisition stages. 

Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives of the various assets using the 
straight-line method. Estimated lives and capitalization thresholds of major classes of depreciable 
assets are as follows: 

Asset Category 

Buildings and Structures 

Improvements and Infrastructure 

Equipment and Vehicles 

Depreciable Life 

30 - 50 years 

10-50 years 

3-20 years 

Capitalization Threshold 

$10,000 

$10,000 

$ 5,000 

With its location within the Lake Tahoe Basin, Defensible Space is an important function for the 
District. This is generally accomplished through contracts with the North Lake Tahoe Fire 
Protection District serving essentially the same geographic area as the District. Defensible Space 
expenditures range from clearing the understory to major tree removal and fuels reduction. The goal 
of the program is to create a "halo" around the community restricting the movement of wildfire in or 
out of the community. The substance of those efforts removes vegetation and other fuels as they 
accumulate. The degree of work in any given area rotates over time based on conditions as assessed 
by the Fire District. Much of the funding for the effort comes from other governments on a Federal, 
State and local level. The IVG ID contribution is focused on treatment of District owned parcels. 
The District budgets to provide resources for its share of contracted expenditures. The work 
provides an ongoing benefit, but the District expenses all costs as incurred. 

K. Amortization of Bond Discounts 

The discounts on bonds sold are being amortized to expense over the term of the bonds. Bonds 
payable are reported net of related discounts. 

L. Compensated Absences and Accrued Personnel Costs 

Full-time employees are provided vacation benefits that specifically relate to tenure with the District. 
After six months of service, employees are entitled to their vested vacation leave upon termination. 
The liability for vacation benefits is recognized with an expenditure or charge to the appropriate fund 
and activity as earned. 

The District pays payroll every two weeks. Any District payroll earned as of montl1 end is accrued 
based on the number of days attributed to that month to the total 14 days paid with the next 
scheduled payroll. Liabilities for fringe benefits and other costs, such as taxes, are also accrued on 
the same method. 

The District has adopted a plan under which certain retirees, who have met specific service 
requirements, can roll unused sick leave pay to cover medical expenses after retirement. Otherwise, 
sick leave is not vested. 

M. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of 
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resources, represents a consumption of net position that will apply to a future period(s) and will not 
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section 
of deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of 
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and will not be 
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. 

N. Unearned Revenue and Refundable Deposits 

The District's Utility Fund reads meters in 3 cycles over the course of a month. Billing occurs once a 
month. Billings for the next cycle are also reconciled with actual usage. Funds received for the 
Tahoe Water Suppliers Association are recognized only to the extent expended and may roll over to 
the next year. 

The District's Community Services Fund recognizes unearned revenue to the extent it has issued user 
passes, gift or payment cards that can be applied to future purchases. There also are advance 
deposits made to reserve dates for facility rentals or program registrations. User passes expire with a 
stated season. 

0. Long-Term Debt 

In the government-wide financial statement, and proprietary fund financial statements, long term 
debts are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or 
proprietary fund statements net of related discounts. Bond discounts are amortized using the 
straight-line method and are amortized over the term of the related debt. 

P. Fund Balance 

In the fund financial statements, fund balance for governmental funds are reported in classifications 
that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on how amounts can be spent. These include "non­
spendable' which are not expected to be converted to cash, such as inventory or prepaid items, 
"restricted" by conditions of law, regulation grants or contract with external parties, "committed" 
which arise from formal acts of the District's Board, "assigned" which reflect an intent by 
management of the District or "unassigned" which is the residual amount. The committed fund 
balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by 
a formal action of the District's highest level of decision-making authority. The Board of Trustees is 
the highest leYel of decision-making authority for the District, which can act by their resolution, prior 
to the end of the fiscal year, and thus commit and/ or assign fund balance. Once adopted, the 
limitation imposed by the Board of Trustees remains in place until a similar resolution is taken to 
remoYe or revise the limitation. 

The District's Board of Trustees has adopted Policy 7.1.0 and Practice 7.2.0, establishing policy 
related to appropriate le,-el of fund balance, as follows: 

General Fund - must meet the minimum balance requirements (4.0% of prior year 
expenditures) required under Ne,-ada Administrative Code Section 354.650. 

Special Revenue Funds - 25% of the fiscal years' operating expenditures (based on the 
current adopted budget) other than capital expenditure and debt service. 

Proprietary Fund Types: 

e Utilities Operatiom - 25% of operating expenses for the fiscal year based on the 
current adopted budget. 
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e Internal Services - 25% of operating expenses for the fiscal year based on the 
current adopted budget. (This level of net position was not achieved for the fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2021). 

The District first utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities then unrestricted 
resources, as they are needed when amounts are available for the same use. The District's 
Governmental fund types first utilizes committed resources as authorized, then assigned and then 
unassigned when amounts are available for the same use. 

Q. Net Position 

In the Proprietary fund and the government-wide financial statements, net position is presented in 
one of three classifications: net investment in capital assets, restricted and the residual unrestricted. 
The net investment in capital assets component of net position consists of capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation, reduced by outstanding balances on bonds that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. The restricted component of net position 
consists of assets restricted by a third party reduced by associated liabilities. The unrestricted 
component of net position is the net amount of assets and liabilities not included in the 
determination of net investment of capital assets or the restricted component. 

R. Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from those estimates. 

S. Central Services Cost Allocation 

The District allocates the shared costs of Accounting and Human Resources based under a Board­
approved plan, adopted each year with the budget. The cost allocation plan considers full time 
equivalent staffing-levels, wages, benefits, and certain services and supplies as a basis for determining 
charges. The charges are based on budgeted expenses. The revenue generated by the allocation is 
recorded as an offset to General Government expenses (for Human Resources and Accounting) in 
the governmental funds statements. 

T. Punch Cards Utilized 

Under District Ordinance 7, parcel owners may obtain up to five Picture Passes and/ or Punch Cards, 
with the latter "valued" at 1/Sth of the annual Facility Fee assessed on each parcel. As a non­
exchange transaction, the revenue collected from the annual Facility Fees are reflected as a General 
Revenue in the Statement of Activities. Punch Cards can be used to pay-down the difference 
between a regular rate and the resident rate for certain types of recreational fees. These forms of 
payment are presented as contra revenue in the Fund statements. No contra-revenues are recorded 
for transactions involving additional Punch Cards purchased by property owners throughout the 
year. 
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DETAILED NOTES ON ALL ACTIVITIES AND FUNDS 

2. COMPLIANCE WITH NEVADA REVISED STATUES AND NEVADA 
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE 

The District conforms to all applicable statutory constraints on its financial administration. 

3. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 

At year-end, the carrying amount of the District's checking deposits was $9,120,155 while the bank balance 
was $9,897,222. Of the bank balance, $250,000 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance Coverage and 
the balance was covered by pledged collateral under an arrangement with the State of Nevada on behalf of all 
local units of government. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at June 30, 2021 consist of: 
Operating Checking Accounts $9,120,155 
Petty cash and change funds 42,803 
Nevada Local Government Investment Pool 
(average weighted maturity of 130 days) 

General LGIP Account 10,915,130 
Utility LGIP Account 4,806,933 

US Government Money Market 14,562,109 
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $39 447 130 

A portion of the District's investments are placed with Wells Fargo Bank as custodian in the US Government 
Money Market, where fair value is determined by multiplying the number of trading units held, by the quoted 
market value on that date. 

The District is a voluntary participant in the State of Nevada Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), 
which has regulatory oversight from the Board of Finance of the State of Nevada. The District's investment 
in the LGIP is equal to its original investment plus monthly allocation of interest income, and realized and 
unrealized gains and losses, which is the same as the value of the pool shares. 

Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS 355.170) set forth acceptable investments for Nevada local governments. The 
District has adopted a formal investment policy that meets those limits and maturities for its investment 
choices. Essentially those investments are brokered certificates of deposit and government agencies. 

The District categorizes its fair value measurements for investments within the fair value hierarchy established 
by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure 
the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs 
are significant other observable inputs. 
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Investment Maturities by Investment Type as of June 30, 2021 

2022 2023 

Certificates of Deposit $ 5,038,829 $ -
LGIP as Cash Equivalent 15,722,062 

LGIP - Restricted Deposits 460,858 

All Investment Types 

Fair Value Measurements as of June 30, 2021 

Certificates of Depsit 

Interest Bearing Amounts - Investments 

LGIP at Net Asset Value {Cash Equivalent) 

LGIP Restircted Deposits at Net Asset Value 
Total Fair Value Measurements 

Level 1 

$ 5,038,829 

$ 

2024 Total 

- $ 5,038,829 

15,722,062 

460,858 

$ 21,221,749 

Total 

$ 5,038,829 

5,038,829 
15,722,062 

460,858 

$ 21,221,749 

Interest Rate Risk - To the extent possible, the District's portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid so as to 
support near-term operating and capital expenditures. In so doing, tl1e portfolio will have limited interest rate 
risk associated witl1 long-term investments. 

Credit Risk - The District's Investment Policy is based on the Uniform Prudent Investors Act and Nevada 
Revised Statutes 355.170 (NRS). The NRS auiliorizes the District to invest in obligations of the U.S. 
Government or U.S. Treasury, providing maturities are 10 years or less from the date of purchase; the local 
government pooled investment fund; negotiable certificates of deposit issued by commercial banks or insured 
savings and loans; short-term negotiable notes or bonds issued by local governments; and bankers' 
acceptances eligible by law for rediscount with the Federal Reserve Banks not to exceed 180 days. 
Diversification of the District's investments is guided by the Uniform Prudent Investors Act. 

Custodial Credit Risk - The District Investment Policy requires FDIC coverage or collateralization on 
deposit-type securities. The District's cash accounts on deposit witl1 financial institutions were covered by 
federal depository insurance and are collateralized by the Office of ilie State Treasurer/Nevada Collateral 
Pool. 

Concentration Credit Risk - The District Investment Policy calls for diversification wiiliout setting maxinmm 
allocations. The District invests in Federal government-sponsored enterprises (GSE) for safety and to meet 
statutory requirements. Individual CD's are held wiili a number of banks at or under ilie FDIC insured 
limited calculated by iliose institutions. LGIP is an unrated external investment pool administered by the 
State Treasurer, with oversight by the State of Nevada Board of Finance. 

4. RESTRICTED DEPOSITS 

The State of Nevada requires a deposit for sales tax collection and electronic filing of $6,075, for a retail 
location in non-District owned premises. 

On September 13, 2017 the District's Board of Trustees approved a settlement agreement relative to ongoing 
litigation with a member of the public. Under this agreement, damages awarded by the Washoe County 
District Court are held in a segregated account in the District's name until the Nevada Supreme Court Appeal 
is completed. The amount of the deposit was $242,584 and now stands at $243,512. 
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The assets of the EPA State Revolving Fund (SRF) Reserve may be used to service the Nevada SRF Sewer 
Bond of 2002. These restricted assets are pledged to provide a measure of security for the Nevada State 
Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund. The pledge is for $213,000, interest earned is in the account at the 
District's discretion. The EPA SRF Reserve is in the LGIP Account totaling $230,224. The assets in the 
TRPA (Tahoe Regional Planning Authority) Reserve may be used to satisfy performance obligations on 
projects authorized by the TRP A. These usually cover several years for construction and inspection phases. 
The total required deposits are $211,778, and interest earned is in the account at the District's discretion. The 
TRPA Project Reserve is in the LGIP Account totaling $230,634: 

Deposit with State of Nevada for Sales Tax 
Building Deposit held by Parasol Tahoe Foundation 
Litigation Damage Deposit held by the District 
LGIP Restricted Deposits (SRF & TRPA) 
Total Restricted Deposits 

$ 6,075 
100 

243,512 
460 859 

$ 710 546 
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital Asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2021: Balance Adjusted Balance Balance 

July 1, 2010 Adjustment July 1, 2020 Increases Decreases June 30, 2021 

Governmental Activities: 

Capital assets, not being depreciated 

Land - General Government 2,669,904 2,669,904 s $ 2,669,904 

Land - Community Services 12,315,573 12,315,573 12,315,573 

Land - Beach 2,304,850 2,304,850 2,304,850 

Subtotal Land 17,290,327 17,290,327 17,290,327 

Construction in Progress - General Government 292,949 292,949 

Construction in Progress - Community Services 2,601,150 2,601,150 1,640,927 (3,979,329) 262,748 

Construction in Progress Beach 373,426 373,426 1,010,438 1,383,864 

Subtotal Construction in Progress 2,974,576 2,974,576 2,944,314 (3,979,329) 1,939,561 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 20,264,903 20,264,903 2,944,314 (3,979,329) 19,229,888 

Capital assets, being depreciated 

Buildings and Structures - General Government 919,213 (2) 919,211 (90,960) 828,251 

Buildings and Structures - CommunitJ Services 32,018,829 24,890 32,043,719 2,014,869 (462,388) 33,596,200 

BuildU1gs and Structures - Beach 2,683,716 2,683,716 (35,157) 2,648,559 

Venue Improvements - Community Services 34,525,442 (24,895) 34,500,547 2,011,246 (957,701) 35,554,092 

\' enue Improvements - Beach 2,252,748 (2) 2,252,746 (205,248) 2,047.498 

Equipment and \ ·chicles - General Goverrunent 1,914,479 (2) 1,914,477 72,929 (194,386) 1,793,020 

Equipment and Vehicles - Community Services: 12,351,359 (3) 12,351,356 477,797 (468,096) 12,361,057 

Equipment and Vehicles - Beach 610,458 (2) 610.456 (57,721) 552,735 

Equipment and Velucles - Internal Se.rnces 253,869 253,869 253,869 

Total capital assets, being depreciated 87,530,113 (16) 87,530,097 4,576,841 (2,471,657) 89,635,281 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings and Structure:-, - General Government (821,371) (821,371) (19,597) 90,960 (750,008) 

Buildings and Structures Commuruty Sen-ices (15,178.336) (15,178,336) (937,199) 412,384 (15,703,151) 

Buildmgs and Structures - Beach (1,678,556) (1,678,556) (86,004) 28,363 (1,736,197) 

Yenue Improvements - Community Sen·ices (20,548,803) (20,548,803) (935,509) 945,485 (20,538,827) 

\
7 enue lmprm·emcnrs Beach (1,544,241) (1,544,241) (85,077) 190,742 (1,438,576) 

Equipment and \'chicles - General Government (1,502,329) (1,502,329) (176,321) 194,386 (1,484,264) 

Equipment and Vehicles - Commuruty Seffices (i.189,139) (1) (7,189,440) (1,067,448) 449,547 (7,807,341) 

Equipment and \"eludes - Beach (344,772) (344,772) (45,452) 42,957 (347,267) 

Equipment and Y eludes - Internal Sen-ices: (189,522) (189,522) (12,561) (202,083) 

Total accumulated depreciation (48,997,369) (1) (48,997,370) (3,365.168) 2,354,824 (50,007,714) 

Total capital as:sets being depreciated, net 38,532,744 (17) 38,532,727 1,211,673 (11(,,833) 39,627,567 

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, net 58,797,647 (17) 58.797,630 4,155,987 (4.096.1(,2J 58,857,455 
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Business-Type Activities 

Utility Capital assets not being depreciated 

Land 6,715,544 6,715,544 6,715,544 

Construction in Progress 1,607,772 1,607,772 2,660,334 (3,232,272) 1,035,834 

Total utility capital assets, not being depreciated 8,323,316 8,323,316 2,660,334 (3,232,272) 7,751,378 

Utility Capital assets, being depreciated 

Buildings and structures 15,596,832 15,596,832 634,779 (219,129) 16,012,482 

Seffice infrastructure 114,599,557 114,599,557 2,736,487 (506,013) 116,830,031 

Equipment and vehicles 3,882,229 2 3,882,231 253,791 (318,564) 3,817,458 

Total utility capital assets at historical cost 134,078,618 2 134,078,620 3,625,057 (1,043,706) 136,659,971 

Less accwnulated depreciation for: 

Buildings and structures (8,680,480) 599,761 (8,080,719) (377,985) 120,100 (8,338,604) 

Service infrastructure (62,637,406) (1,743,599) (64,381,005) (2,744,786) 390,478 (66,735,313) 

Equipment and vehicles (3,920,422) 1,267,514 (2,652,908) (233,149) 309.912 (2,576,145) 

Total accwnulated depreciation (75,238,308) 123,676 (75,114,632) (3,355,920) 820.490 (77,650,062) 

Total utility capital assets being depreciated, net 58,840,310 123,678 58,963,988 269,137 (223,216) 59,009,909 

Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, net 67, 163,62(, 123,678 67,287,304 s 2,929,471 s (3,455.488) 66,761,287 

The District has a number of Construction in Progress projects open as of June 30, 2021. Beach includes $1,376,704 for 
the Burnt Cedar Swimming Pool Remodel. The Utility Fund includes $844,529 for the design phase of the Effluent 
Export Line that project will be ongoing through at least 2023. The District's primary building season is limited to May 
to October because of regulations from the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency. Most equipment purchases follow the 
budget and fiscal year cycle. 

Depreciation expenses for the year ended June 30, 2021 was charged to functions as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 

General Government 

Recreation 

Beach 

Internal Services 

Total Depreciation Expense 

Business-Type Activities: 

Utility Fund Water and Sewer 

6. ACCRUED PERSONNEL COSTS 

$ 

$ 

$ 

195,918 

2,940,157 

216,534 

12,561 

3,365,170 

3,355,920 

The General Fund processes and issues payments for all payroll and most related personnel and benefit costs 
for all funds of the District. At the time the expenses are incurred, each fund records its appropriate costs. 
As payments are made, the individual funds provide their share through the pooled cash. This process 
provides the General Fund with the necessary available financial resources to meet the District wide 
obligations. Generally, no regular payroll or personnel accruals are recorded to the individual funds. 

Accruals for special payments, Health Reimbursement Accounts, Sick Leave at Retirement, \Yorkers 
Compensation and Vacation can appear in individual funds, because they are recognized well in advance of 
the payment process. The General Fund also maintains any banks accounts specific for payment of benefits. 
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As a regular course of operations, the payroll including June 30th was paid July 9th. The employee benefits 
earned through June 30th are also funded in the following month. At any given point the District has an 
obligation to its employees for the value of vacation time earned and not taken. The obligation is measured 
by the value due as if the employee terminated. The District allows retiring employees with an excess of 20 
years of service, and that have accrued sick leave, to have it converted to Medical Retiree Benefit for 
reimbursing post-employment heath related costs. There are54 eligible employees covered. The District has 
no other post-employment benefit obligations for health insurance or retirement benefits. 

The District offers health reimbursement accounts (HRA) in exchange for the insured accepting a higher 
deductible or co-insurance. The Plan is administered by the health insurance carrier. The District also has a 
third party administered flexible spending account (FSA). The District maintains bank accounts exclusively 
for reimbursements for HRA and FSA transactions. 

The District provides Workers Compensation through a risk pooling arrangement funded with quarterly 
assessments. The fourth quarter is paid in arrears after a payroll verification conducted by the risk pool. 

Accrued Personnel Costs as of June 30, 2021: 

Current Payroll Liabilities: Governmental Business-Type Total 

Accrued Payroll 

Taxes Withheld 

Accrued Benefits 

Deferred Comp 

Retirement Plan 

Health Reimbursement Accounts 

Sick Leave Retirement Benefits 

Workers Comp Unpaid Assessments 

Accrued Vacation 

Total Government-Wide 

$ 

$ 

609,398 

156,036 

(163,148) 

43,856 

56,345 

128,430 

141,486 

(2,971) 

428,048 

1,397,480 

$ -

149,939 

183,766 

$ 333,705 

$ 

$ 

609,398 

156,036 

(163,148) 

43,856 

56,345 

128,430 

291,425 

(2,971) 

611,814 

1,731,185 

The Government-wide Accrued Personnel Costs could be liquidated within one year and has been classified 
as current. The following accounts are based on ongoing activity as opposed to a point in time accrual: 

Balance 
Select Benefit Liabilities June 30, 2020 
Health Reimbursement Accts. $ 131,727 
Sick Leave Retirement Benefit 29,967 
Accrued Vacation 602,313 

7. UNEARNED REVENUE 

Provisions 
Additions Pavments 
$ 46,148 $ 49,445 

43,124 43,954 
846,239 830,015 

Balance 
lune 30, 2021 
$ 128,430 

29,136 
618,537 

The District receives a number of payments that will be recognized as revenue or a liquidated liability based 
upon a future transaction when the service is provided. These include: 

Community 
Services Beach 

General Special Rev. Special Rev. Utility Total 

Billed in advance $ 41 $ 940,732 $ 53,311 $171,921 $1,166,005 
Unexpired season passes 1,109,016 1,109,016 
Internal Gift Cards 72 866 72 866 

Total $ 41 $2122 614 $ $171 221 $2 224 5:Z6 
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8. INTERFUND ACCOUNTS AND TRANSFERS 

The outstanding balances between funds results mainly from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund 
goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the 
accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made. The balances settle monthly through pooled 
cash and therefore there are no open balances as of June 30, 2021. 

Transfers for Capital Projects and Debt Service represent revenues from the fund that by statue or budget 
authority collects the revenue to provide resources for specified functions and transaction types to the fund 
that will expend them. 

Gross Transfers reported on the financial statements as of June 30, 2021 are as follows: 

Fund Transfer In: 

Community Community Community 

Servlces Services Services Beach Beach Beach 

General Special Capital Debt Special Capital Debt Utility 

Fund Revenue Projects Services Revenue Projects Services Fund 

Fund Transfer Out: Total Out 

Internal Services Fund $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

General Fund $ 

Community Services 

Special Revenue 537,835 $ 537,835 

Beach 

Special Revenue $ 

$ $ $ 537,835 $ $ $ $ $ $ 537,835 

9. LONG-TERM DEBT 

All of the District's Long Term Bonds are collateralized by a pledge of revenues derived and to be derived 
from the operation of either the Utility, Community Services or Beach venues, after deduction there from of 
the amount necessary to pay all operating and maintenance charges as required by applicable bond 
agreements. The District is also required to maintain rates sufficient to pay all maintenance, depreciation, 
replacement, betterment, and interest charges. 

Outstanding Long-Term Debt as of June 30, 2021: 

Issue 
Governmental Activities: 

Issue 
Date 

General Obligation Revenue Bonds Recreation 
Recreation Facilities and Recreation 
Refunding 2012 07 /18/12 

Maturity 
Date 

09/01/22 

Total Recreation Revenue Supported Debt 

Interest Amount 
Rate Issued 

2.25% 3,475,000 

Principal 
Outstanding 

S 769 000 

$ 769.000 

Business Type Activities Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements: 

Utility 
State of Nevada: 
Sewer C32-0204 10/28/02 01/01/23 

Water IVGID-1 09/09/04 07/01/25 

Sewer CS32-0404 (G.O.) 08/01/06 01/01/26 

\Xiater DW-1201 (G.O.) 03/16/12 01/01/32 

Total Utility Revenue Supported Debt 

Total Debt -All Activities 

3.14% Sl,720,380 s 247,360 

3.08% 1,687,282 474,139 

2.73% 3,000,000 963,978 

2.39% 3,000,000 1.860.756 

S3 546 233 

$il:i315,233 

Current 
Portion 

S378 000 

$378.000 

S121,751 

99,798 

202,553 

149 789 

$~ 

~ 

54 



Long-Term Debt changes for the year: 

Beginning New 
Balance Issues 

By Activity Type: 
Governmental: 
2012 Recreation S1 137 000 s 

Business Type Direct Borrovvings and Direct Placements: 
Sewer C32-0204 365,370 
Water IVGID-1 570,931 
Sewer CS32-0404 1,141,608 
Water DW-1201 2 007 029 
Business Type Total 4 084.938 

Total Debt SS 221 938 "=S=== 

By Bond Type: 
General Obligation 
Revenue 

Total Debt 

Bond discounts 

Long-term Debt, net 

S4,285,637 
936,301 

ss 221 938 

(5,315) 

ss 216 623 

s 

s 

Principal 
Reductions 

S368 000 

118,012 
96,792 

177,630 
146 273 
538 707 

S9Q6 707._ 

$691,903 
214 804 

S9Q6 7._Q7._ 

3 358 

S2Q3 3:19 

Ending Due Within 
Balance One Year 

S769 000 S378 000 

247,360 121,751 
474,139 99,798 
963,978 202,553 

1 860 756 149 789 
3,546.233 573 891 

S:1315233 $951 891 

S3,593,734 £730.342 
721,499 221 549 

S:'1: 315 233 $951 891 

(1,958) 

S:'I: 313 275 

Future Debt Service Requirements as of June 30, 2021: 

Debt Supported by Debt Supported by 

Fiscal Year Utility Revenue Recreation Revenue 

Ending-June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest 

2022 $ 553,841 $ 89,291 $ 378,000 $ 13,050 

2023 569,405 73,728 391,000 4,399 

2024 455,827 58,730 

2025 468,183 46,373 

2026 424,055 33,677 

2027 to 2031 884,959 81,900 

2032 189 960 

Total $3 546 232 $ 38:Z 112 $ 1 13:Z Q00 $ 38 891 

At June 30, 2021, principal and interest to maturity to be paid from pledged future Utility Revenues totals 
$3,933,344 and $1,175,891 paid from future pledged Recreation Revenues. 

55 



10. DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 

The District is holding a deposit of $243,512 for a damage award as part of ongoing litigation relating to 
matters asserted by a member of the public. An appeal was filed with Nevada Supreme Court, and a final 
order was issued in favor of the District in November 2020. 

The District has been awarded FEMA/N evada Department of Emergency Management grants for 2017 
damage to the Diamond Peak Maintenance Building for $38,643 and a portion of the culvert for $331,019. 
Review of the final costs and determination of payment is ongoing. These amounts are deferred at the fund 
level. 

11. CAPITAL GRANTS 

The District was awarded FEMA/Nevada Department of Emergency Management Grants for 2017 damages 
to facilities and infrastructure. Final review and payment is ongoing. This year the District received $88,505 
for the Incline Park Facility Renovation Project from the Incline-Tahoe Foundation. 

12. DISTRICT RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 

The District has two retirement plans covering substantially all of its full-time year round employees. Those 
not covered under the Pension Trust Fund for Operating Engineers are covered by the District's Money 
Purchase Pension Plan (Section 401(a)). The District also sponsors a Section 457 Deferred Compensation 
Plan. No trust is used in relation to these plans; account balances are in the name of the individual employee. 

The District's Money Purchase Pension Section 401(a) Plan is a defined contribution plan. The plan is 
administered by third party administrators. In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts 
contributed to the plan plus investment earnings. Employees are eligible to participate after six months of 
service. The District's provides a non-elective contribution of 12.3% of the employee's earnings. The 
District's contributions for each employee are fully vested after four years of service. District contributions 
and interest forfeited by employees who leave employment before fully vesting, are used to reduce the 
District's current-period contribution requirement. Employees are not allowed to contribute directly into this 
plan. 

The Pension Trust Fund for Operating Engineers is a cost sharing, multiple employer, defined benefit plan 
contract between the District's employees and the Operating Engineers Union. The plan provides 
retirement and medical benefits to eligible participants based on a formula of years of service and reaching a 
qualifying age. It is available to approximately 45 positions in the District, covered by the collective 
bargaining agreements, with only four electing to do so. The District is not a party to this defined benefit 
plan. The District's liability under the union collective bargaining agreement is limited to making montl1ly 
contributions based on union employees' pay for hours worked. Consequently, the District is not liable for 
any funding shortage of the defined benefit plan. Each year the District contributions to the plan equal 100% 
of the District's liability under the bargaining agreement. The Pension Trust Fund for Operating Engineers 
issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary 
information. That report may be obtained by writing to the Pension Trust Fund for Operating Engineers, 
1600 Harbor Bay Parh."Way, Suite 200, Alameda, California 94502 or by calling (800) 251-5014. 

The District's Deferred Compensation (Section 457) Plan is a defined contribution plan. The plan is 
administered by third party administrators. In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts 
contributed to the plan plus investment earnings. Employees are eligible to participate in1mediately after the 
first day of a month of employment. Employee contributions are subject to Internal Revenue Service 
regulations for Section 457 plans. The District provides a matching contribution up to 5%. Both employee 
and District contributions are fully vested 100% as made. 
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The District's total contributions equal to required contributions for employees covered by the above plans 
are as follows: 

FYE June 30 

2021 

401(a) Money 
Purchase 

$1,010,059 

Operating 
Engineers 

$ 45,900 

Employer 
Section 457 

$ 401,126 

Employee 
Section 457 

$580,355 

The District offers its employees deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal Revenue 
Code Section 457. The plans, available to all District employees, permit them to defer a portion of their 
earnings until future years. The deferred compensation benefit is not collectible by employees until 
termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. 

13. SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE AND RISK MANAGEMENT 

Insurance Coverage on June 30, 2021 consists of the following: 

Tvpe Carrier i'.Provider Amount 

Property Liability NV Public Agency Pool $ 300,000,000 

on buildings & contents 

Earthquake & Flood NV Public Agency Pool 150,000,000 

Boiler & Machinery NV Public Agency Pool 100,000,000 

General Liability NV Public Agency Pool 10,000,000 

Cyber Security Event NV Public Agency Pool 3,000,000 

Money & Securities NV Public Agency Pool 500,000 

Site Pollution Incident NV Public Agency Pool 2,000,000 

Ski Resort Gen. Liability Nova Casualty Company 1,000,000 

Ski Resort Excess Liability Nova Casualty Company 6,000,000 

\"X7orkers Compensation NV Public Agency Comp. Trust 2,000,000 

The District has elected to participate in the Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool. The risk-sharing Pool 
secures insurance coverage for all its members. The Pool agreement provides coverage for the equivalent of 
errors and omissions and directors' and officers' acts. The Pool does not offer general or excess liability 
coverage for the Diamond Peak Ski Resort. Therefore, separate coverage is purchased. 

A portion of each member's premium contributions to the Pool goes into the Loss Fund and the remainder 
pays for the excess insurance premiums and administrative expenses. The amount of the Loss Fund 
contribution is determined by the underwriters based on each member's average annual losses over the prior 
five years. This amount may vary each year. 

The Pool pays all losses from the Loss Fund per occurrence, less the member's maintenance deductible. The 
District has a $5,000 deductible. Excess insurance above the Pool's self-funded amount, is provided by 
secondary markets based on arrangements made with the Pool, including a Pool owned captive. 
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There were no District settlements in excess of insurance coverage in any of the three prior fiscal years. 

Ski Liability Insurance is not covered by the Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool. A separate insurance 
program, less the District's $10,000 deductible, provides coverage. 

The District has elected to participate in the Nevada Public Agency Compensation Trust (NVP ACT) to 
provide workers compensation coverage for all employees. The District pays quarterly assessments. The 
assessments are based on actuarial estimates provided by NVP ACT utilizing covered payroll data for the 
most recent calendar year. A portion of each member's assessment goes into the Loss Fund and the 
remainder pays for the excess insurance premiums and administrative expenses. This amount may vary each 
year. 

14. RESTRICTED FUNDS 

The General Fund reflects a restriction of $1,359,737 to reflect the District's obligation under the terms of 
settlement of the property tax dispute filed against Washoe County et al, Nevada State Board of Equalization 
and the Department of Taxation by the Village League to Save Incline Assets, Inc. As the terms of the 
settlement are finalized, this amount is recorded as a liability at June 30, 2021 in the government-wide Statement 
of Net Position. 

15. COMMITTED FUND BALANCE 

As of July 1, 2015, the Board of Trustees established Special Revenue, Capital Project and Debt Service funds 
for District Community Services and Beach activities. Based on governmental accounting standards the fund 
balance for the Special Revenue funds are assigned for the purpose of recreation privileges utilizing the 
assessed facility fee. Furthermore, fund balances within the Community Services Capital Fund and Beach 
Capital Fund are further assigned for the purpose of future planned capital improvement projects. These 
funds generally represent revenues collected through the Recreation and Beach Facility fees allocated 
specifically to capital projects. 

16. UNRESTRICTED FUNDS 

At its meeting of March 3, 2020, the Board of Trustees took action to "restrict" $9,656,890 for the purpose 
of earmarking tl1ese funds for the Effluent Export Pipeline Project. On August 12, 2020, the Board 
designated an additional $1,912,767 as "restricted" for this purpose. As of June 30, 2021, an additional 
$1,889,210 in unexpended FY2020/21 appropriations are designated for this project. When combined with 
an additional $754,568 in accrued interest earnings, the total funding intended to be "restricted" by the Board 
of Trustees for the Effluent Export Pipeline Project amounts to $14,213,435. Funds designated for the 
Effluent Export Pipeline Project represent a portion of funds received by the District from utility rate 
revenues established and collected specifically for Utility capital improvement projects. 

Notwithstanding the Board's action to designate funding for the Effluent Pipeline Project, this funding 
remains in the unrestricted net position of tl1e District's business-type activities on the government-wide 
Statement of Net Position. This is due to the determination that the Board's designation does not rise to the 
level of meeting the criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 34 for restricted net position within proprietary 
funds. 

17. LEASE OBLIGATIONS 

Revenue: 
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Miscellaneous revenue includes rent received for cell towers on District property. Under an agreement with 
American Tower, $21,305 was paid for a tower at the Mountain Golf Course. The current five-year term is 
from April 2017 and ends in 2022, with the option for extensions every five years through 2037, cancelable by 
either party. Rent increases 3% per year. Under an agreement with AT&T $20,159 was paid for a tower at 
the Mountain Golf Course. The current five-year term is from October 2015 and ends in 2020, with 
automatic extensions every five years, through 2035, cancelable by the tenant. Rent increases 3% per year. 
Under an agreement with AT&T $6,400 was paid for a tower at Diamond Peak Ski Resort. The current five­
year term is from July 2018 ends in 2023, with extensions every five years, cancelable by the tenant, through 
2038. Rent increases 3.5% per year. Revenue in the amount of $11,197 was also received from T-Mobile 
(assigned to Crown Castle) for a cell tower lease at Diamond Peak Ski Resort. Its term is June 2017 to 2022 
with 1 option to renew for 5 years. 

American 
AT&T AT&T T-Mobile 

Parasol Reno-Sparks 

Tower Lease Foundation Convention and 
FY2021 $ 21,305 $ 20,159 $ 66,400 $ 11,197 $ 1 $ 1 

FY 2022 21,945 20,764 68,724 11,384 1 1 

FY 2023 21,386 71,130 1 1 

FY 2024 22,028 1 1 

FY 2025 22,689 1 1 

FY 2026 1 1 

FY 2027 1 1 

FY 2028 1 1 

District leases 1.5 acres of property adjacent to the Incline Village Middle School to the Parasol Foundation 
for $1.00 per year. 

District leases property located at 969 Tahoe Boulevard to tl1e Reno-Sparks Convention and Vistlor 
Authority for $1.00 per year. 

Expenses: 

Golf Cart Lease - In fiscal year 2019 /20 the District entered into an Installment Purchase Agreement with 
PNC Equipment Finance, LLC for a fleet of replacement golf carts for the Mountain Golf Course. The 
District's outstanding obligation under this agreement total $58,269 paid in 23 remaining equal monthly 
installments. The lease started in February 2020, witl1 the first payment against this obligation made in 
February 2020 in the amount of $2,533. 

The District holds a Use Permit for Diamond Peak operations and activities on property owned by the U.S. 
Forest Service adjacent to District-owned property. The District pays an annual permit fee based on 
revenues generated by selected Ski operations. The fee amount for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021 was 
calculated at $57,237. 

The Utility Fund paid $452 during the year ended June 30, 2021 for a leased copier under an agreement 
expired December 2020. 

18. DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTS 

The District collects money for boat inspections performed by the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency. The 
balance owed at the end of the year was $15,126. 

19. COMMUNITY SERVICES AND BEACH SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
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The District provides recreation functions through two individual special revenue funds. Each serves a 
different set of venues and customer base. A significant source of revenue for these functions for operations, 
capital expenditure and debt service comes directly from a facility fee assessed by parcel for each function and 
expenditure type. Facility Fees have been listed separately by fund and function. The operating portion of 
the assessed facility fee is combined with charges for services to provide the resources for providing services. 
Charges for services are aggregated, while expenditures are provided by function. As stated in Note 1 T, part 
of the facility fee can be used to pay for charges for services in lieu of other forms of privileges. These are 
referred to as Punch Cards. The following are major functions included in Charges for Services and the 
approximate amounts of punch cards activity that is included. 

Community Services Fund: 
Championship Golf 
Mountain Golf 
Facilities 
Ski 
Community Programming 
Parks 
Tennis 
Recreation Administration 

Total 

Beach Fund 

District Total 

Charges for 
Services 

$ 3,214,950 
809,745 
790,683 

10,206,918 
1,014,837 

22,350 
156,631 

(123,602) 
$16 092 512 

$ 839 405 

$16 931 917 

20. COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FUTURE PERIODS 

General Fund: 

Paid with 
Punch Cards 

(eending) 

$ 196 844 

$ 616 419 

$ 813 263 

The District entered into an unemployment insurance contract with First Nonprofit Companies for total 
premiums of $413,000 for calendar year 2021 services. As of June 30, 2021, $206,500 in quarterly deposits 
are remaining as a part of the subsequent year's budget. 

Capital Improvement Project Budget Carryover: 

The District budgets for capital improvement projects one year at a time for spending authority. The actual 
execution of construction or acquisition can span one or more fiscal years. The District identifies carryover 
and unspent budget authority for those projects. The amounts for governmental fund types are re-budgeted 
for tl1e subsequent fiscal year. The unused Utility Fund resources become part of Unrestricted Net Position, 
and are budgeted under cash flow on the State of NV budget forms. Amounts carried over at year-end are: 

General Fund 
Utility Fund 
Community Services Fund 
Beach Fund 

$ 66,947 
3,341,387 
2,110,924 

453,019 
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Budgeting for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022: 

The District's budgeting for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022 anticipates a reduction in Fund Balance and 
Net Position caused by completion of capital projects. The identified reductions include; General Fund by 
$217,063 including implementation of a new Human Resources Management and Payroll 
System; Community Services reduction of $3,757,491 (including $550,000 for the Mountain Golf Course 
Path Replacement Project, $800,000 for the Recreation Center Locker Room Improvement Project). The 
Beach Fund has a reduction of $2,066,683 related to renovation of the Burnt Cedar Pool as well as Incline 
Beach Facility Improvements. The Utility Fund capital plan anticipates a draw-down in Net Position 
primarily due to advancing the Effluent Export Pipeline Project. 

The District has committed to these contractual arrangements for capital improvement projects: 

Contractor 
(pendingJ 

Project 
Contract 
Amount 

21. RESTRICTED DEPOSIT HELD IN LAWSUIT 

Completed 
(6/30/21) 

Remaining 
Amount 

The District has been engaged in a lawsuit with an individual over many years . A District Court decision 
made an award to the District for the recovery of fees. Both the Court decision and the fess awarded are 
under an appeal. In order to reduce possible longer-term exposure to the individual, the District received 
$241,646 on September 14, 2017. These refunds are in a separate money market account and classified as a 
Deferred Inflow until all appeals under the lawsuit are resolved. The timeframe for a decision is unknown. 

22. STATE OF NEVADA TAX ABATEMENTS AFFECTING DISTRICT REVENUES 

The State of Nevada has entered into various tax abatement agreements that reduce the tax revenues of local 
governments. Taxes reduced include the Consolidated Tax, which includes allocated sales and use tax 
revenue. State law establishes the abatements. The District's estimated share of abatements for this fiscal year 
is $41,360. 

23. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS 

The District's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021 reflect prior year adjustments related to a 
settlement between Washoe County and certain residents of Incline Village and Crystal Bay in relation to 
property assessments performed in prior years. This settlement was reached in fiscal year 2020 for $1,359,736. 
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MEMORANDUM 

TO: Audit Committee 

FROM: Ray Tulloch 
Audit Committee Chair 

SUBJECT: Update on progress of implementation of Moss Adams 
recommendations and Audit Committee recommendations on 
improvements to future Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports as 
per Board of Trustees motion on General Business Item K.2. from the 
February 10, 2021 meeting 

DATE: October 26, 2021 

I. RECOMMENDATION 

The Audit Committee receive an update from the Director of Finance on progress 
of implementation of Moss Adams recommendations and Audit Committee 
recommendations as per Board of Trustees motion on General Business Item K.2. 
from the February 10, 2021 meeting. Review and discuss outstanding issues 
based on update. 

II. BACKGROUND 

In Fiscal Year 2020/2021, Moss Adams reviewed and provided recommendations 
to the Audit Committee with regard to several issues that had been raised with 
regard to financial reporting. Some of these recommendations were incorporated 
in the 2020 CAFR and others were to be applied to the 2021 CAFR. The Audit 
Committee has requested an update on this from Finance Director Navazio. 

Ill ACTIONS 

To be agreed based on review and discussion. 

IV. FINANCIAL IMPACT 

There is no financial impact. 

Attachment: 
Navazio update/response memorandum dated 10/20/2021 
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w 

Incline Village General Improvement District 
Classification of accounting/reporting issues raised 

Improper switch from enterprise funds to 

use of special revenue funds for Community 
1 Services and Beach 

Improper capitalization of effluent pipe 
2 repairs and condition assessments 

Improper capitalization of feasibility studies 

3 and master plans 

Improper use of punch card contra~revenue 

4 accounting 

Improper allocation of administrative and 

5 overhead costs from the GF 

Incorrect revenue recognition for utility 
base rate charges in periods prior to 

6 delivery of service 

lndadequate disclosure of construction 
commitments and lack of classifying related 
amounts of fund balance as committed for 

7 capital projects 

Improper classification/reporting of Facility 
Fees and GF admin and overhead charges in 

8 the Statement of ActMties 

To be addressed 

in future CAFRs Issue is 

with the immaterial to the 
Suggested for District's future financial 

statements expanded SOW audit firm 

X 

X 

X 

X 

Addressed in MA 
consulting report 

X 

X 

X 

X 

Comments 

our recommendation is to switch back to enterprise fund reporting, 
and we understand the District is planning to make this change. 

We understand the projects in question have some elements of 

extension of useful life and likely some elements that would not 

meet capitalization criteria. We understand management already 

has plans to perform a more detailed analysis, and we believe the 
project will require more evaluation and judgement. Further, the 
evaluation necessary will be enhanced by development of more 
robust capitalization policies yet to be developed as we 
recommended in our report. We believe this to be better 

addressed in the District's work with its external auditor and once 
the dollar amount of any necessary adjustments is determined the 
reporting implications can be determined at that time. 

We understand management has already identified amounts 
capitalized incorrectly and has made adjustments to the 19/20 
financial statements. 

This issue was addressed in our report with a recommendation to 
cease the use of punch card accounting. We understand 
management is already making plans to cease use of this 
methodology. 

This issue was addressed in our report. Changes were noted as 
necessary in the financial statement for both reimbursements 
between funds and how internal service fund activity ls reported ·m 

the government-wide financial statements that can be revised in 
future CAFRs since neither issue has a bearing on total net position 
or fund balance of any individual fund. 

The amount in question is immaterial to the utility fund financial 
statements. This issue would best be discussed with the District's 
external audit firm with any revisions made in future CAFRs. 

There is adequate accounting guidance for disclosure requirements 
of construction and other commitments as well as classifying fund 
balance among the different levels of constraints. This can be 
worked out with the District's external audit firm with any 

revisions made in future CAFRs. 

This has to do with the placement of Facility Fee revenues in the 
Statement of Activities, and the 'netting' vs. 'gross' reporting of 
expenditures and reimbursement revenues within the Statement of 
Revenues and Expenditures for the General Fund, and does not 
impact net position or fund balances of individual funds. Therefore, 

this can best be addressed in future CAFRs. 

Management Comments - FY 2020/21 CAFR Preparation 

Does not apply to 2020/21 financial statements. (Transition back to 
Enterprise Funds for Community Services and Beach funds for 
FY2021/22 Budget) 

Under review by District's external auditor; recommended expensing 

of assets previously capitalized are being done in accordance to 
auditor recommendations. 

Substantially addressed in 19/20 financials; additional items being 
expensed in 20/21 based on review by external auditor. 

Partially implemented; Punch Card contra~revenues are no longer 
adjusted based on ration of Recreation / Beach Facility Fee; Punch 
card utilization was changed in 20/21 to remain within Community 
Services or Beach funds, based on venue. 

Issue addressed in 19/20 financials 

Under review by District's external auditor. 

Note to Financial Statement is being updated for 20/21 to reflect 
complete list of (material) construction contract commitments. 

Under revierw by District's external auditor. (See document request 
list) 
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Incline Village General Improvement District 
Classification of accounting/reporting issues raised 

Potential for error in the period of 
recognition of a grant obtained for the 

9 Incline Park ball fields 

Improper capitalization of $150,751 of 
repairs to Mountain Golf Course Clubhouse 

10 addressing fire damage 

lndadequate disclosure of lease 
commitments with US Dept of Agriculture 

11 and Parasol Foundation 

Suggested for 
expanded SOW 

To be addressed 
in future CAFRS 

with the 
District's future 

audit firm 

X 

X 

Issue is 
immaterial to the 

financial 
statements 

Addressed in MA 
consulting report Comments 

We understand a grant was obtained and as of 6/30/20, was 
completely or nearly completely received and expended. We 
understand the budget contained estimated resources and 
expenditures in the year(s) cash was expected to be received and 
expenditures made. If the grant is an 'expenditure-driven' grant, it 
is likely the timing of revenue recognition in past CAFRs have been 
correct. If the grant is not an expenditure-driven grant - there is a 
chance revenue should have been recognized sooner and in the year 
all eligibility requirements were met securing the District's right to 
the grant resources. Given this is a t'tming issue in the year(s) grant 
revenues are to be recognized, we would not recommend restating 
prior year financial statements for this item absent a request by the 
granter, federal or state regulator, or some other reason for which 
the District would deem the benefit of the restatement effort to be 
greater than people and financial resources required. 

An evaluation of all costs incurred in the year of the fire and in 
future years, incurred specifically to address the fire damage and 
bring the fadlity back to its condition prior to the fire, should have 
been compared to any insurance proceeds received with a resulting 
gain or loss recognized in the year of the fire. The amount noted is 
immaterial to the Community Service financial statements and any 
expenditures incurred for the renovation of the Clubhouse can best 
be evaluated annually as they occur and discussed with the 
District's external auditor. 

Current accounting standards issued require footnote disclosure of 
signifcant lease commitments, and GASS 87 which can be 
implemented by the District at any time now and no later than its 
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 will significantly change how leases 
are reported within the financial statements, We suggest the 
evaluation of the signifcance of these leases and related 
disclosures and the implementation of GASB 87 be discussed with 
the District's external audit firm and any revisions to the 
accounting and disclosures be made in future CAFRs. 

Management Comments - FY 2020/21 CAFR Preparation 

Under revierw by District's external auditor. (See document request 
list) 

Under revierw by District's external auditor. 

Under revierw by District's external auditor. (See document request 
nst) 
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Incline Village General Improvement District 
Classification of accounting/reporting issues raised 

Inaccurate disclosure of who has authority 
12 to create assigned fund balance 

Lack of classification of certain amounts as 
'fund balance committed for capital 
projects' for commitments on executed 

13 construction contracts 

14 Inconsistent references to note titles 

Incorrect reporting in the notes of 'segment 
information' for Community Services and 
Beach funds that is not applicable only to 

15 enterprise funds 

To be addressed 

in future CAFRs 
with the 

Suggested for District's future 

expanded SOW audit firm 

X 

X 

Issue is 
immaterial to the 

financial 

statements 

Addressed in MA 

consulting report Comments 

Any remaining posif1ve fund balance amounts in governmental 

funds outside of the General Fund are appropriately reported as 
'assigned' as specified in GASB 54. In essence, the fact the Board is 
accounting for certain resources in governmental funds, GASB 
deems the resource to be 'assigned' if it is not otherwise non~ 

spendable, restricted, or committed - by definition. Local 

governments can establish who has the authority to establish 
assigned resources in the General Fund and it is common for that 
authority to be given to certain members of management. It is a 

best practice to memorialize who has the authority and what action 
and documentation is required to establish an assignment. This is 
something that can be addressed in a review and enhancements to 

Board policies in the future to memoriallze the Board's decision on 
who can create an assignment and how, and the reporting in the 
financial statements can be discussed with the District's external 
auditor and any revisions made to future CAFRs. 

The mere fact the Board and management have remaining 
commitments for capital projects at any year-end does not result in 
a requirement for a portion of fund balance in governmental funds 
to be reported as 'restricted' or 'committed1

, or net pos·1tion in any 
enterprise fund to be reported as 'restricted'. Such a classification 
would only be required for an externally created restriction on a 
resource for any fund or an lnterally created commitment by the 
Board for governmental funds related to unspent resources at year­

end. We suggest this issue is best addressed with the District's 
external auditor and if any revisions are found to be necessary, 
that they are made to future CAFRs. 

We find it to be a best practice to use consistent titles throughout 
the financial statements. This is something best addressed in future 

CAFRs. 

Segment information is only required in certain circumstances for 
enterprise funds that include multiple activities. It is not 
appropriate for governmental funds. This is something that can be 
revised in future CAFRs. 

Management Comments - FY 2020/21 CAFR Preparation 

Under revierw by District's external auditor. {See document request 
list) 

Notes reviewed for consistency {ongoing). 

Under review - applies to Supplemental information 



0, 
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Incline Village General Improvement District 
Classification of accounting/reporting issues raised 

FYE 6/30/19 CAFR under-reporting of 

Facility Fees and Beach Fees the Board 
intended for cap·1tal projects and debt 

16 service 

Improper reporting of fund balance 
classifications in Community Services and 
Beach funds between committed, assigned, 

17 and unassigned 

Inadequate capital asset policy disclosure in 

18 the notes to the financial statements 

Lack of disclosure of minimum fund balance 

19 policies 

$198,135 of proceeds from land sales 

between 2016 to 2019 were 
innappropriately recorded in Commun'tty 
Services special revenue fund instead of the 

20 related capital project fund, 

Missallocation of Facilities Fees the Board 
allocated to Capital Projects and Debt 
Service of Community Services and Beach to 

21 the CS and Beach special revenue funds. 

fnnappropriate dassiflcatlon of effluent pipe 
special assessments in the Statement of 
Revenues and Expenses as operating 

22 revenues 

Suggested for 

expanded SOW 

To be addressed 

in future CAFRs 

with the 

District's future 

audit firm 

X 

X 

Issue is 
immaterial to the 

financial 
statements 

Addressed in MA 
consulting report Comments 

To the extent the Board is in agreement with the findings in our 
report that Facility Fees in general and portions assessed for capital 
projects and debt service specifically meet the criteria for 
'commited' resources, to the extent any Facility Fees committed to 

capital projects or debt services remain unspent at the end of the 
year, the calculated amount should be reported as 'committed for 

capital projects' or 'committed for debt service' within the 
governmental funds to which they relate. In discussing this w'ith 
management and review of prior CAFRs, it appeared greater 
amounts have been spent on capital projects than the allocation of 

the Facility Fees to capltal projects. So it is not clear lf any change 
would need to be made to the classifications of ending fund balance 
at this time. Since this relates to a reclassification of existing fund 
balance amounts, if a revision is necessary, this could be addressed 
in future CAFRs. 

This appears to be the same issue noted in #12 and #16 above which 

we suggest can be addressed in future CAFRs. 

This is a disclosure issue we believe can be addressed with the 
District's external auditor and any revisions made in future CAFRs. 

This is a disclosure issue we believe can be addressed with the 

District's external auditor and any revisions made in future CAFRs. 

The amount involved is immaterial to the financial statements. 

This appears to be the same issue noted in #16 above. 

The issue noted here addresses the location/classification of the 
special assessment amounts for the effluent pipe replacement 
project within the Statement of Revenues and Expenses for the 

Utility fund. The proper classification is dependent on how the 
special assessment is calculated, how it is assessed, and how it 
relates to what was represented to the community at the time of its 
assessment. Given it does not impact the total net position of the 
Utility fund, we suggest this can be addressed with the District's 
external auditor in future CAFRs. 

Management Comments - FY 2020/21 CAFR Preparation 

Facility Fee revenues are budgeted and reported within Special 
Revenue, Capital and Debt funds in FY20/21 financials. 

Under revierw by District's external auditor. (See document request 
list) 

Note disclosure to be updated 

Note disclosure to be updated 

No action needed. 

Facility Fee revenues are budgeted and reported within Special 

Revenue, Capital and Debt funds in FY20/21 financials. 



a, 
-.J 

Incline Village General Improvement District 
Classification of accounting/reporting issues raised 

Interest earned on unspent effluent pipe 
replacement special assessments should be 
limited in use to the effluent pipe 

replacement project to comply with Board 

23 Policy 13.1.0 and Board Practice 13.2.0 

$119,497 of costs incurred to assess 

underground p'iping, potential leaks, and 
other pool related issues were capitalized 

24 that should have been expensed 

To be addressed 

in future CAFRs 
with the 

Suggested for District's future 
expanded SOW audit firm 

Issue is 
immaterial to the 

financial 
statements 

X 

Addressed in MA 

consulting report Comments 

The amount involved is immaterial to the Utility fund. That said, the 
amount could be significant and involves the application of a wr'1tten 
Board practice. We believe a calculation can easily be performed of 
interest deemed to be associated with average actual unspent 
special assessments annually and cumulatively and a balance of 

unspent special assessment amounts plus unspent interest earnings 

can be disclosed in the footnotes for Board designations in future 
CAFRs. 

Amounts are immaterial fa the financial statements. 

Management Comments - FY 2020/21 CAFR Preparation 

Note has been updated to include interest earnings applied to 
Effluent Export Pipeline set-aside 

No action needed. 



MEMORANDUM 

TO: Audit Committee 

FROM: Trustee Sara Schmitz 
Audit Committee Member 

SUBJECT: Review of completed Internal Controls updates and prioritized 
schedule of Internal Controls updates to be completed in Fiscal Year 
2021/2022 

DATE: October 26, 2021 

I. RECOMMENDATION 

The Audit Committee review, with Finance Staff, and discuss completed Internal 
Controls updates and prioritized schedule of internal control updates to be 
completed in FY 21-22. 

II. BACKGROUND 

IVGID Finance staff have been identifying and implementing updates to Internal 
Controls. Finance Director Navazio previously provided an update to the Audit 
Committee at the August 10, 2021 meeting and advised that work was ongoing. 
The Audit Committee has requested an update on this progress. 

Ill ACTIONS 

To be agreed based on review and discussion. 

IV. FINANCIAL IMPACT 

There is no financial impact. 

Attachment: 
Navazio updated Internal Controls schedule dated 10/2021 
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Board Policy and Procedures Update 

(Excerpt Board memo, October 13, 2021) 

Policy - Focus Area Lead Support 
Policy 6.1. 0 Adoption of Financial Practices 

I 6.1.2.1 -Revenues/Pricinq Policies Staff Trustee Wonq 
I 

Policy 7.1.0 / Practice 7.2.0 - Fund Balance Staff Trustee 
Policy 19.1.0 / Practice 19.2.0 - Working Capital Staff Tanking/ 

Consultants 
(Raftelis) 

I 
Policies 8.1.0, Capitalization Thresholds Staff Trustee 
Policy 9.1.0 I Practice 2.9.0 - Useful Life of Staff Tanking/ 
Capital Assets Consultants 

(Moss Adams) 
I 

Policies 12.1.0 and 13.1.0- Capital Project Consultant Trustee 
Planning (Moss Tanking 
and Capital Budqetinq Adams) 

I 
Policies 18. 1. 0 / Practice 18.2. 0 - Central Staff Trustee 
Services Cost Allocation Tonkinq 

Target Date 

November 2021 

October 2021 

October 2021 

November 2021 

December 2021 
(Budqet Process) 
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Old 

Section 

'l 
r-: 

(·. 

-. 

-.J 
C) 

I 

II 

Ill 

IV 

V 

VI 

VII 

VIII 

New l 
Section 

6.3.1 

6.3 .2 

6.3.3 

6.3.4 

6.3 .5 

6.3.6 

6.3.7 

6.3.8 

Accounting and Financial Procedures 

Update of Accounting and Finance Procedures 

October 2021 

r 7 Review Revisions Staff Responsibility 

Date Draft Review Final Date Initial Policy Admin . 

Internal Controls Jan '21 I LP I MW/PN I I I I I 
Effective Internal Controls Procedures review with draft updates (approval pending) 

Controls in a Computer Environment I Dec '21 I I I I I I I I 
Application Controls Focus area for review by external auditor; subject of 1/T Questionnaire and specific document requests. 

Program Maintenance Procedures review/update pending comments and recommendations from external auditor 

Computer Operations 

Security 

General Ledger and Journal Entries July '21 I MW I PN I I I I I 
Maintaining an Effective Accounting System Procedures review with draft updates (approval pending) 

General Ledger Activity 

Adequate General Ledger Maintenance 

Cash I July '21 I MW I PN I I I I I I 
Cash Management Procedures review with draft updates (approval pending) 

Cash Receipts 

Disbursements from Bank Accounts 

Imprest and Similar Funds 

Bank Reconciliations 

Revenue Cycle Jan '22 I I I I I I I I 
Revenue Recognition 

Accounts Receivable 

Customer Returns and Allowances 

Other Revenues 

Production Cycle Dec '21 I I I I I I I I 
Sales and Product Forecasts Inventory control procedures updated at selected District venues 

Cost-Flow Methods Potential recommendations pending from review by external auditor 

Inventory Control Dec/ Jan update will include standardizing procedures across all venues 

Periodic Physical Inventory 

Inventory Obsolescence 

Pre-paid Expenses I Jan '22 I I I I I I I I 
Monitoring and Accounting for Prepaid Expenses 

Controlling Asset Balances 

Investments I Dec '21 I I I I I I I I 
Investment of Idle Funds Procedures updates pending potential comments from external audit review 

Safeguarding of Investments 

Return of Investment 

Compliance 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 



Old New l 
. Se_c.tjliJD Section 

I 
IX 6-3_9 

X 6.3.10 

1, XI 6.3.11 

XII 6.3.12 

XIII 6.3.13 

1·, 

" -
-..J ....... 

Accounting and Financial Procedures 

( -
Property and Equipment 

Additions to Property and Equipment 

Update of Accounting and Finance Procedures 

October 2021 

] I Review Revisions 

I Date Draft Review Final 

I July '21 I MW I PN I 

Date 

I 
Procedures review with draft updates (approval pending) 

I Staff Responsibility I 
Initial I Policy Admin _ Compliance I 

I I I I I 
Accurate Records of Property and Equipment 

Depreciation of Property and Equipment 

Existence of Capital Assets 

Disposal of Capital Assets 

Purchasing and Accounts Payable I July '21 I MW I PN I I I I I I I 
Determination of Needs Procedures review with draft updates (approval pending) 

Placement of Orders 

Cellular Telephone Use 

Receipt and Acceptance 

Establishment of Accounts Payable 

Return of Goods to Suppliers 

Purchase Cut-Off 

Procurement Card Program 

Advertising 

Tipping 

Bulk Purchases 

Notes Payable/ Long-Term Debt I Feb. '22 I I I I I I I I I 
Financial Resource Requirements 

Assumption and Authorization of Debt 

Safekeeping of Debt Agreements 

Record of Debt 

Timely Interest Expense Accruals 

Debt Payments 

Bond Discounts and Premiums 

Current and Long-Term Debt Summary 

Debt Covenants 

Accrued Liabilities I Feb. '22 I I I I I I I I I 
Monitoring of Accrued Liabilities 

Reconciliations and Accuracy 

Human Resources and Payroll I Jan. '22 I I I I I I I I I 
Payroll and Personnel/Human Resources HR/ Payroll procedures subject to comprehensive update concurrent with implementation of new HR/Payroll System (Tyl 

Wages and Salaries 

Timekeeping 

Payment to IVGID Employees 

Payroll Deductions 

Quarterly and Year-End Reports 



Old 

Section 
--

-

" 

-.J 
N 

XIV 

New I 
Section 

6.3.14 

6.3.15 

6.3 .18 

Accounting and Financial Procedures 

I - - - - .. - -- - -

Budget Cycle 

Electronic Payment Systems 

Central Services Cost Allocation 

Procurement Cards Program 

Update of Accounting and Finance Procedures 

October 2021 

-l I Review Revisions 

- - - I Date Draft Review Final 

I May '22 I I I 

I Staff Responsibility I 
Date Initial I Policy Admin . Compliance I 

I I I I I I 
Budget Cycle and budgt control procedures to be re-evaluated based on direction from FY22/23 budgt process. 

I July '21 I MW I PN I I I I I I I 
Procedures review with draft updates (approval pending) 

I July '21 I MW I PN I I I I I I I 
Procedures review with draft updates (approval pending) 

I July '21 I MW I PN I I I I I I I 
Procedures review with draft updates (approval pending) 



MEMORANDUM 

TO: 

FROM: 

Audit Committee 

Cliff Dobler 
Audit Committee Member 

SUBJECT: Allocation of Investment Income earned on Cash, Cash Equivalents 
and Investments for the IVGID Governmental Funds ONLY for the 
fiscal years ending June 30, 2019 and 2020. 

DATE: October 26, 2021 

I. RECOMMENDATION 

The Audit Committee and Finance Staff review, discuss and possibly consider 
changes in the methodology used to allocate interest earned between funds based 
on average annual cash balances. 

II. BACKGROUND 

A memo was provided to the 6/21/21 Audit Committee meeting regarding the 
Allocation of Investment Income earned on Cash, Cash Equivalents and 
Investments for the IVGID Governmental Funds. In response IVGID Finance staff 
provided further details on 8/10/21. Subsequently additional questions have been 
raised regarding the methodology used to allocate interest between funds. The 
attached memo - Appendix 1 - provides details. 

Ill ACTIONS 

To be agreed based on review and discussion. 

IV. Al TERNATIVES 

Do not move forward with the proposed review. 

V. FINANCIAL IMPACT 

There is no aggregate financial impact. 

73 



Audit Committee meeting 10/26/21 

Appendix 1 to Agenda Item D5 

October 18, 2021 Revised 

To: IVGID Audit Committee 
From: Cliff Dobler 

cc: Board of Trustees, Paul Navazio and Indra Winquest 
Re: Misallocation of Investment Income earned on Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments for 
the IVGID Governmental Funds ONLY for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2019 and 2020 

Issue 
IVGID may have not properly allocated the Investment Income of $563,335 for fiscal year 2019 
and $591,208 for fiscal year 2020 between the governmental funds of IVGID. As such, based on 
average CASH held in each of the governmental funds, approximately $532,000 may have been 
improperly recorded in the General Fund rather than in the three Community Services Funds 
and the three Beach Funds. See Exhibit A 

Background 
Since 2019, the District has been holding in excess of $20,000,000 in Cash, Cash Equivalents 
and Investments ("CASH") for the governmental funds (No Utility Fund) most of which have 
been invested into three main vehicles: 

• State of Nevada Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) 
• Wells Fargo Bank - Certificates of Deposits, 
• US agency securities 

For the past two years, approximately 60% of the CASH has been held in the pooled Nevada 
State LGIP account. According to the historic distributed interest rates of the LGIP, the annuals 
yields, calculated by month, have been between 1.99% and 2.54% in 2019 and .92% and 
2.47% in 2020. The annual yields from certificates of deposits and US agency securities, 
administered by Wells Fargo Bank, are unknown, however, the yields would probably be in line 
with the yields produced by the LGIP. 

It is not known how IVGID has allocated the Investment Income for both fiscal years between 
the seven governmental funds. There is no Board Policy or Practice which provided any insight. 
Based on the lopsided amounts allocated to the General Fund a fair and reasonable allocation 
was not conducted. 
This memo only addresses fiscal years 2018/2019 and 2019/2020 but this issue may have been 
occurring since, at least, fiscal year 2015. 

Analysis - EXHIBIT A 
Exhibit A establishes a fair and reasonable allocation of the Investment Income based on the 
average CASH held in each of the 7 funds. In order to establish a fair and reasonable allocation 
of the Investment Income, Exhibit A lists the beginning and ending CASH for the fiscal years 
2019 and 2020 and establishes the average CASH for each of the 7 funds. 
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The average CASH in each fund allocated proportionally to the total CASH held by all funds 
provides a basis for a fair and reasonable allocation of the Investment Income. 

As indicated, the Investment Income allocated to the General Fund was substantially in excess 
in relation to the overall Investment Income based on the annual average CASH in each 
governmental fund. 

This analysis does NOT include restricted deposits of $379,577 in 2019 and $385,160 in 2020 
stated on the balance sheet. A determination should be made on where the interest on these 
deposits were recorded. It is unknown if the cash deposits are held in separate bank accounts 
or held at the LGIP. 
Based on additional public records received after June 21, 2021, three observations are made: 

• In January, 2019 interest earned from the LGIP and recorded in the General Fund 
increased dramatically and at the same time, interest earned in the Community Services 
Special Revenue Fund (Ski sub fund) ended completely. The LGIP account balances at 
June 30, 2019 and 2020 were $8.2 million and $13.2 million which were far in excess of 
the General Fund cash positions of $4.6 million and $5.5 million for the same dates. It 
appears that interest earned from Community Services cash was being redirected to the 
General Fund. 

• In 2019 and 2020, Wells Fargo held $6 million and $5.8 million in CD's and agency 
securities in a "Cash Pool Account". All interest earned was recorded in the General 
Fund. These amounts again exceeded the total cash held in the General Fund. 

• IVGID records the increase in market value over the purchase price of a CD as 
Investment earnings. The amounts recorded as mark to market income for the 
governmental funds (no Utilities) may have been biased towards the General Fund. A 
full analysis is necessary of the allocation of the mark to market income. In fiscal 2020 
the year end journal entries recording mark to market income had 70% allocated to the 
General Fund. 

It should also be noted that the restricted deposits on the Statement of Net Position do not 
agree with the Notes to the Financials. 

Unless specific amounts of cash and related investment earnings can be identified by Fund, 
then the averages of cash in each fund could be used to properly allocate investment earnings 
as described below in Exhibit A. 

• The investment income of all funds for fiscal year 2019 was $563,325 and produced an 
annual yield of 2. 75% based on the average CASH of $20.5 million held during the fiscal 
year. The average cash for the General Fund was only $3.9 million representing only 
19% of total CASH, however it received $327,817 or 58% of the investment income. 
Properly allocating the investment income based on average CASH held during the year, 
only $107,168 should have been allocated to the General Fund. An apparent 
overstatement of approximately $220,647. 

• The investment income for fiscal year 2020 was $591,208 and produced an annual yield 
of 2.480% based on the average CASH of $23.8 million held during the fiscal year. The 
average cash for the General Fund was only $5.1 million representing only 21 % of total 
CASH but it received $436,643 or 74% of the investment income. Properly allocating the 
investment income based on average CASH held during the fiscal year, only $125,550 
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should have been allocated to the General Fund. An apparent overstatement of 
$311,093. 

The overstatements described above may exceed the threshold of Materiality of the General 
Fund's financial condition. 

A review and subsequent report on the appropriate amounts of investment income which should 
have been allocated to each of the seven governmental funds should be performed as soon as 
possible. Based on the report, an adjustment to the various accounts may require to be made. 

This recorded allocation of investment income for 2019 and 2020 substantially favored the 
General Fund by almost $532,000 in additional Revenues and may be constitute a 
misstatement of the financial conditions of the General Fund. 

• The Balance Sheet in the 2020 CAFR indicates the General Fund had assets of only 
$6.2 million thus the overstatement of almost $532,000 in CASH overstates the General 
Fund assets by almost 8.6%. 

• The Balance Sheet also indicates the Unassigned Fund Balance was only $3.1 million 
thus the overstatement of almost $532,000 in CASH overstates the Unassigned Fund 
Balance by 17.2%. 

• According to the CAFR's, the Excess of Revenues over Expenditures for fiscal year 

Based on the threshold of materiality provided to the Audit Committee by Davis Farr, LLP, the 
District auditors, these estimated errors may rise above the threshold of materiality for fiscal 
years 2019 and 2020 and, if this is the case, should be addressed in the 2021 CAFR. 

IVGID Staff response to inquiry on the June 21, 2021 memo to Audit Committee by Cliff 
Dobler 

On August 1 O, 2021, Staff of IVGID provided details of errors in recording earnings from 
investments for money market and checking accounts only. All interest earned was recorded in 
the General Fund. A proper allocation would have reduced investment earnings in the General 
Fund by $25,445 in fiscal year 2018/2019 and $18,264 in 2019/2020 and then increased 
investment earnings in other governmental funds. The analysis did not address the Certificate of 
Deposits, Agency Securities or the State LGIP account. 

Exhibit A - Analysis of Allocation of Investment Income - fiscal years 2018/2019 and 
2019/2020 Revised 
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Incline Village General Improvement District 
Analysis of Allocation of Investment Income Fiscal years 2018/2019 and 2019/2020 

Governmental Fund ONLY - Does not include Utility Fund 

Sources - CAFR Balance Sheets and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Community 

General Services Beaches 

Fund SR Fund SR Fund 

Fiscal year ending June 30, 2019 

6/30/2018 Cash, Cash Equivalents, Investments 3,174,585 11,689,289 1,539,550 

6/30/2019 Cash, Cash Equivalents, Investments 4,619,435 14,751,053 1,945,888 

AVERAGE Cash, Cash Equivalents, Investments 3,897,010 13,220,171 1,742,719 

Investment Income for Fiscal year 2019 (As reported) 327,815 199,322 36,188 

Investment In come return (yield) for Fiscal Year 2019 8.41% 1.51% 2.08% 

Proper Allocation based on AVERAGES 107,168 363,555 47,925 

Estimated Adj ustment (220,647) 164,233 11,737 

Fiscal year ending June 30, 2020 

6/30/2019 Cash, Cash Equivalents, Investments 4,619,435 14,751,053 1,945,888 

6/30/2020 Cash, Cash Equivalents, Investments 5,505,558 17,724,284 2,646,405 

AVERAGE Cash, Cash Equivalents, Investments 5,062,497 16,237,669 2,296,147 

Investment Income for Fiscal year 2020 (As reported) 436,643 126,143 28,422 

Investment Income return (yield) for Fiscal Year 2020 8.63% 0.78% 1.24% 

Proper Allocation based on AVERAGES 125,550 402,694 56,944 

Estimated Adjustment (311,093) 276,551 28,522 

EXHIBIT A 

Community Community 

Services Beach Services Beach 

CP Fund CP Fund OS Fund OS Fund Total 

2,610,032 101,701 51,553 4,606 19,171,316 

372,676 109,433 21,798,485 

1,491,354 105,567 25,777 2,303 20,484,901 

563,325 

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 2.750% 

41,012 2,903 709 54 563,335 

41,012 2,903 709 54 0 

372,676 109,433 21,798,485 

25,876,247 

186,338 54,717 23,837,366 

591,208 

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 2.480% 

4,621 1,357 591,167 

4,621 1,357 (41) 



DATE DAY OF THE TIME LOCATION COMPLETED 

WEEK MEMORANDUMS WITH ALL 
BACK UP MATERIALS FOR 

AGENDA ITEMS FROM AUDIT 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

DUE DATE 

LONG RANGE CALENDAR -AUDIT COMMITTEE 1 

ITEMS SLATED FOR CONSIDERATION 

Discuss the option of calling for 
public comment 
Seeing the October financials 
sent to the auditors 
Procurement card policy and 
authority 
Contract management 
Dillon's Rule on DPSEF contract 
(Trustee Schmitz said that the 
Board of Trustees did approve a 
scope of work) 
Restricted funds versus 
committed funds 
7 items on 6/9 agenda that were 
deferred to the future 
Items that should be expensed 
Misallocation of investment 
earnings 
Burnt Cedar pool contract in 
violation of N RS 

Thursday, October 21, 2021 
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MINUTES 

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING OF AUGUST 18, 2021 
Incline Village General Improvement District 

The Audit Committee meeting of the Incline Village General Improvement District 
was called to order by Audit Committee Chairman Ray Tulloch on Wednesday, 
August 18, 2021 at 3:30 p.m. via Zoom. 

A. ROLL CALL OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS* 

On roll call, present were Cliff Dobler (At-Large Member), Sara Schmitz (Trustee), 
Raymond Tulloch (At-Large Member, Chairman). 

Members of Staff present were Director of Finance Paul Navazio. 

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS* 

Dick Warren said at the August 10th AC meeting, General Business item D.2, he 
was less than thrilled with the presentation by Jennifer Farr on the "External Audit 
Update". He is worried that in Davis Farr we are getting another Eide Bailly type of 
auditor, which would be terrible. Jennifer reviewed Eide Bailly's workpapers re the 
Moss Adams report, found them to be complete, did not agree with all of the Moss 
Adams recommendations, but then did not change anything with respect to the 
CAFR expensing capitalized items. And then Sara's comment about the word 
"should" pretty much blew Jennifer away. It might have been the most salient point 
of the entire meeting, it came up again in General Business Item D.3, the Update 
on Internal Controls. Management "should" do this & that, but they really don't have 
to do anything! Internal Controls have been a sad joke for over a year and a half, 
no progress has been made with the "less than aggressive" Financial Management 
under Navazio. Delay, delay, delay, only do something if absolutely necessary. 
One of the best examples is this $3-4M write-off that should have already occurred 
re Capitalization Projects, but Management refuses to do anything with it. The 
knowledge & experience of Tulloch & Dobler re Capitalization Projects far exceeds 
the collective wisdom of IVGID Management. Management, listen to the AC, you 
just might learn something. It might be helpful for the AC to dictate deadlines for 
Management with respect to getting things done. Relying on Davis Farr might not 
be in the best interests of the AC if Davis Farr exhibits a laissez-faire attitude. My 
larger concern is that the Trustees will purposely "dumb-down" the AC to the Board 
level. It is quite obvious to any casual observer of IVGID that the IVGID 
Management can not stand the AC because the AC espouses competency & 
honesty, two attributes totally lacking in IVGID Management. IVGID Management 
loves the attributes of the current Board of Trustees collectively - stupidity, 
unwillingness to criticize Staff even when warranted, not looking into the details of 
anything, not following up on anything, you name it, the IVGID Powers-To-Be love 
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incompetency with a hint of corruption. Another way to look at it is that if Airhead 
Tonking & Wong were on the AC, do you think anything positively would have 
occurred in the past year or so? He doubts it; in fact, he'll bet his house on it. Thank 
you. 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (for possible action) 

Audit Committee Chairman Tulloch asked for changes to the agenda, none were 
received so the agenda was approved as submitted. 

D. GENERAL BUSINESS ITEMS (for possible action) 

D.1. Review, discu~s and possibly consider recommendations for 
modifications to Board Policy 15.1.0 for submission to the Board 
of Trustees (Requesting Audit Committee Member: Audit 
Committee Chairman Raymond Tulloch) 

Audit Committee Chairman Ray Tulloch said that one of the items that the 
charter requires us to do is this review and what he has put forth is initial 
commentary and recommends that the Audit Committee work off of the 
clean version as the redline version looks like there was a lot of changes but 
it is actually formatting changes; the changes are in line with the original 
charter and are very minor changes. Audit Committee At-Large Member Cliff 
Dobler said that on the redline version, he wanted to get a clarification, there 
are several colors - red, blue and green - and asked what was the 
significance of the different colors? Audit Committee Chairman Tulloch said 
that it is typically by a different user and there no significance as it is just 
showing changes. District General Counsel Nelson further explained the 
color differences. Trustee Sara Schmitz said, on the very first page, and that 
she spent some time on doing the research, there are three personnel 
policies regarding volunteers, and the At-Large members are definitely 
volunteers, and that she thinks we need a statement that the Audit 
Committee At-Large members are volunteers and that there are District 
policies that are specifically about volunteers and that they have to do with 
harassment, substance abuse and violence in the workplace so she thinks 
we should add a reference to those policies and that they are provided to all 
volunteer members. Audit Committee Chairman Tulloch agreed to that 
recommendation. Audit Committee At-Large Member Dobler said he 
received an e-mail from Trustee Schmitz this morning and he didn't see 
anything about substance abuse. Trustee Schmitz said it is in the personnel 
policies and that she shared it, and it was not for discussion, 2.7 was the 
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one she didn't share. She thinks just to make it clear, all policies that 
reference volunteers, so they should be given to the Audit Committee 
members. District General Counsel Nelson said yes, we should include that 
reference and then provide those policies. Audit Committee At-Large 
Member Dobler said including them is fine and then abide by them. Trustee 
Schmitz said that the Audit Committee members are expected to comply 
with District's policies that are relative to volunteers and that all Audit 
Committee members are volunteers and will be provided copies of 
referenced policies. Audit Committee Chairman Tulloch asked if there was 
a signature kept when these policies are issued to employees or some 
process for recording it? District General Manager Winquest said we do 
track all changes or revisions to these policies and yes, we will inform 
members of any changes. Audit Committee Chairman Tulloch said so there 
is a process in place for providing those changes? District General Manager 
Winquest said that he will advise the Human Resources team that they must 
include this group. Audit Committee At-Large Member Dobler said in these 
policies they don't have Trustees - are they considered employees? District 
General Counsel Nelson said that they are not employees and that we would 
expect them to comply in a similar manner. Trustee Schmitz said Section 1 O 
makes a recommendation and goes in to 2.10 and it references volunteers 
but not Trustees. Audit Committee At-Large Member Dobler said if it applies 
to volunteers, it should apply to Trustees. Trustee Schmitz said that the Audit 
Committee shall review the Charter annually. Audit Committee Chairman 
Tulloch then recommended that the committee go page by page and that he 
would record all changes suggested/made. The committee agreed to this 
process, proceeded to do their page by page review, with Audit Committee 
Chairman Tulloch taking the notes on the changes requested. 

E. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES (for possible action) 

E.1. Audit Committee Meeting Minutes of August 10, 2021 

Audit Committee Chairman Tulloch asked for changes. Trustee Schmitz said 
that on page 5, $25,000 is supposed to be $2,500, page 34 of the packet; 
pg. 6, 0.3. - in the very first sentence, substantive, delete that word; yes, 
OfficeMax was referenced in the accounting internal controls and she 
couldn't find that comment which she thought was important - she has to go 
back and find out where that is supposed to fit. Audit Committee At-Large 
Member Dobler said agenda packet page 32, 2/3's down, statement 4, insert 
GASB Concept Statement 4; agenda packet page 33, about half way down, 
discern should be at the discretion of management, before the line that has 
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F. 

GASS; agenda packet page 43, second line from the bottom, despite should 
be dispute; agenda packet page 45, 2/3's down, in 2019, the General Fund 
made an 8.4%, then 7.63 add in 2020. Going down you, should be General 
Fund could not have; three lines before the bottom, effluent pipeline, reserve 
funds. Hearing no further changes, Audit Committee Chairman Tulloch said 
that the minutes were approved with the changes as discussed. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS* - Conducted in accordance with Nevada Revised 
Statutes Chapter 241.020 and limited to a maximum of three (3) minutes in 
duration. 

There were no public comments made at this time. 

G. ADJOURNMENT (for possible action) 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:01 p.m. 

Attachments*: 

Respectfully submitted, 

Susan A. Herron 
District Clerk 

*In accordance with NRS 241.035.1 (d), the following attachments are included but 
have neither been fact checked or verified by the District and are solely the 
thoughts, opinions, statements, etc. of the author as identified below. 
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